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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD P.O. Box 2000 Benton, Louisiana 71006-2000 Phone (318) 549-5000 FAX (318) 549-5044 December 6, 1999 
Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish Schools Benton, Louisiana Dear Board Members 

Elizabeth S. Cassibry President 

The CompreheBsive Annual Financial Report of the Bossier Parish School Board (the School Board) for the year ended June 30, 1999, is submitted herewith. This report has been prepared by Finance Department personnel following the guidelines recommended by the Association of School Business Officials International and the Governnlent Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada. A. Managenlent Responsibility Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported iu a nlamler designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the various funds and account groups of the School Board. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the School Board's financial activities have been included. 
B. CAFR The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of three parts The Introductory Section. This section includes a transmittal letter, the School Board's organizational slructure, and recognition of the elected School Board. (2) The Financial Section. The School Board's financial statements and schedules are presented in accordance with the financial reporting pyramid set forth by the Govern- mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). "]'he School Board's complete financial operations are depicted in the general-purpose financial statements and thus present an overview of the School Board's operation. Individual fund and account group statements are also presented along with the combining statements. Combining statements are presented when a school board has more than one fund of a given fund type. Various statements are also used to demonstrate finance-related legal and contractual compliance, present other infommtion deemed useful, and provide details of data summarized in the financial statements 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL SYSTEM "An Equal Oppor~nity Ed~tion~tl A~eacy" 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
B. CAFR (Continued) (3) The Statistical Section. Included in this section are a number of tables of nnaudited data depicting the financial history, demographics, and other miscellaneous information of the Bossier Parish School Board for the past tell years. The School Board is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions ofthc Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996 and U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular No. A- 133, "Audits. of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations." Information related to this single audit includes tile schedule of expenditures of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and auditors' reports on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The single audit report is issued separately from this Compre- hensive Annual Financial Report. The School Board provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels kindergarten through grade twelve. These include regular and enriched academic education, special education for handicappcd youngsters, occupation education, and many individualized programs such as specialized instruction for disadvantaged students and those with limited English proficiency. These programs are supplemented by a wide variety of offerings in fine arts and athletics. C. Reporting Entity Tile report includes all entities or organizations that are required to be included in the School Board's reporting entity. The GASB establishes standards for defining and reporfing on lhe financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary goverument, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary goverument are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of the financial accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizxttions that make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an orgauizatiou's governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary govermnent. A primary government may also be financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. The financial statements present the Bossier Parish School Board (the primary government). Based on the above criteria there are no component units to be included in the School Board's reporting entity. D. Economic Condition and Outlook The Bossier Parish School System is located in the northwest part of the state and is a part of the economic "hub" for this region. During 1998-1999, Bossier Parish continued to enjoy a strong economy. Residential construction in north and east Bossier Parisb, expansion in existing businesses and construction of new businesses arc financial indicators of a strong aud stable economy. Tourist activity continues to increase primarily as the result of riverboat gaming. Two new hotels are under construction in the Parish. Gaming continues to be a positive economic influence in the area. 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
D. Econonric Condition and Outlook (Continued) Barksdale Air Force Base (Barksdale), which currently employs over 7,000 people in this area, continues to be as viable and active as it has in the past. The base is under expansion with the addition of a weather wing coming to Barksdale. Barksdale officials continue to indicate that the base will remain an integral part of our community, being that Barksdale is not a part of any Base Realignment or Closures. With only the Red River dividing the Parish from the City of Shreveport and Caddo Parish, the condition of the Shreveport economy, directly and indirectly, has an effect on Bossier Parish. Shreveport recently was named an "All American City" and the economy of the Bossier/Shreveport area again experienced sustained growth during 1998-1999. This growth is evidenced by the increases in retail sales, employment, and residential housing construction. The local General Motor truck plant has recently announced a major expansion project that will also strengthen the area. Sales tax collection for the School Board continues to grow and exceeded 1997-1998 collections by $1,015,230 due to increased consumer spending, the river boats, and building activities. E. Major Initiatives 

All parish high schools went to a four by four block cun'iculum schedule during this school year. This format allows students to earn eight credits per school year versus six under the old format. More classes and increased opportunities are afforded each high school student under this plan In September 1996 all School Board employees received a 9,5% pay raise funded by a property tax millage increase approved by the parish voters in 1996. Increased collections from this millage provided a $725.00 supplement to teachers in 1998-99. For the Future The School Board continues to look for new and innovative ways to improve the entire educational syslcm of Bossier Parish. Bossier Parish schools continue to face significant issues and concerns that require effective and timely planning and leadership. A large portion of the system's funding has traditionally come from the State. State funding has increased each year. The State emphasis has been on classroom instructional expenditures. As enrollment continues to increase, the School Board is faced with needs for additional classroom space. A $17 million bond proposal was placed before the voters in April 1996. This proposal was passed and two new middle schools will be opened for the 1999-2000 school year. No new millage was required to complete this construction. 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Bellton~ Louisiana 
F. hrtcrnal Control The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control that is designed to ensure that the assets of the School Board are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. Also, internal control is designed to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of fiuancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. An internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefit likely to be derived; and (2) tile valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. We believe that the School Board's accounting controls provide reasonable assurance of prevention of errors or irregularities to the financial statements and provide measures for timely detection by employees in the normal course ofpcrformfilg their assigned functions. As a recipient of federal, slate and local financial assistance, the School Board also is responsible for ensuri,g tha! adequate internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. Internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by management and file internal audit staff. As a part of the School Board's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control, including that portion related to federal awards programs, applicable laws and regulations. G. Budgeting Controls In addition, the School Board maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the School Board. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds and capital project funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function for lhe general fund, debt service funds, and capital project funds; and by fund for the special revenue funds. School Board policy provides that expenditures may not exceed appropriations on a functional fund basis as appropriate. Management is authorized to transfer amounts within the funclional categories without Board approval. Revisions to the budget enacted require School Board approval. I1. Financial Condition General Educational Functions 
General educational activities which are accounted for in the general fund are supported principally by local taxes and state entitlements. Direct federal aid is nominal in the general fund, However, substantial sums of indirect federal aid are received through the Louisiana Department of Education. General fund revenues are as follows: 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
1t. Financial Condition (Continued) 
Source Local State Fedcral Total General educational expenditures by function were as follows 
Iteln Current Instruction General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Food services Conmmnily services Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service Principal retirement lnterest and bank charges 

(Continued) 
Amount $14,795,883 54,424,642 __L620,363 

Increase Percent (Decrease) of Total From 1998 20.89 $ 863,487 76.83 3,024,942 2.28 ./_155,982) 

Amount $66,955,938 1,451,920 6,593,591 1)29,272 9,727,571 5,101,966 746,284 g20,593 163,097 9,733 1,096,439 2380~2_73 

Increase Percent (Decrease) of Total Fron! 1998 71.13 $ 5,851,427 1.54 ( 78,581) 7.00 1,116~32 1.31 188,262 10.33 ( 48,148) 5.42 (2,114,846) 0.81 (373,128) 0.87 (100,888) 0.17 130,070 0.01 (504,307) 1.16 269,534 0.25 ___24,561 Total ~134,477 100.00 .~4_,3._..___60,388 The unreserved fund balance decreased from $946,343 to $(2,918,093) or - 408.36%. This unreserved fund balance represents - 3.10% of 1998-1999 expenditures. 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
11. Financial Condition (Continued) The deficit fund balance of the general fund results from payment of non-reoccurring large expenditures that have been incurred over the last year. These expenditures include such projects as replacing air conditioners at schools, purchasing buses, and technology upgrades. In addition to the elimination of these non-reoccurring expenditures, in the 1999-2000 fiscal year, the School Board should receive approximately $3 million additional dollars from the state as a result of the Mininmm Foundation Program being fully funded. These steps should ensure that the deficit fund balance will be eliminated during the next year. Snecial Revenue Activities Special revenue funds revenues of$29,126,481, including $21,283,022 of local sources, $953,820 of state sources, and $6,889,639 of federal sources, were restricted for use in several separate activities. Sales tax revenues of $18,669,817 are recorded in the sales tax special revenue fund. The school food service fund accounts for $5,304,143 of these revenues. The school lunch program is administered by this fund. The remainder was designed to: (1) fund programs for educationally deprived youngsters, (2) provide instructional and related services to handicapped children, and (3) provide extended day remedial instruction, adult education programs, and other programs for the general student population. Special revenue funds expenditures by ftmction were 
]iem Instruction General administration School administration Business services Plant services Fo~d ser'~;.ces Total 

Amount $ 3,512,061 525,797 4.673 205,542 2.409,268 __55,836,180 

increase Percent (Decrease) of Total from 1998 28.11 4.21 0.04 1.65 19.28 46,71 
$ 337,307 (405.671) ( 1,700) (1,681,320) 2,118,370 168,610 

Debt Service Activities The changes in general long-term obligations are as follows: 
Bonds and notes payable Capital leases payable Compensated absences payable Claims and judgments 

July 1,1998 $22,601,004 2,948,366 5,219,174 10,000 
Additions $ 803,442 

Payments June 30, 1999 $2,498,394 478,045 203,762 $20,102,610 2,470,321 5,818,854 10,000 $30,778,544 ~803,442 3~j80~201 $28,401,785. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Organization Chart June 30, 1999 



Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
Presented to 

Bossier Parish School Board, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence In Financial Reporting Is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achleve the highest standards In government accounting and financial reporting, 

President 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
IL Financial Condition (Continued) Capital Proiects Most major capital improvements are accounted for in the capital projects funds. During the year ended June 30, 1999, much of the capital improvemenl expenditures, $4,561,363, were transferred to "the general fund to finance air conditioning equipment repairs and utility expenditures. The majority of these funds were expended oil the renovation and expansion of existing schools. An additional $12,959,669 was expended on new construction of facilities. At June 30, 1999, fue capital project funds had a fund deficit of $(2,189,655). This deficit is the result of cost overruns on the construction of two middle schools. This deficit will be eliminated by transfers from the general fund and/or sales tax fund in the next fiscal year. Proorietarv Fund Activities The School Board maintains an internal service fund to account for medical and dental coverage. Contributions to the fund increased from $12,092,628 in 1998 to $t3,336,613 in 1999, an increase 0f$1,243,985 or 10.29%. This increase is due primarily to an increase in employee's premiums paid to the health insurance program. Medical claims increased from $12,054,856 in 1998 to $13,502,674 in 1999, an increase of $1,447,818 or 12.01%. The retained earnings deficit for the internal service fund is a result of prior years' claims cost exceeding premiums and a cash-basis funding practice. The School Board has fully funded the internal service fund on both a cash basis and an accrual basis for two of the past three years. The School Board has committed to amortizing this deficit over a 5-year period. Fiduciary Activities The school activity funds comprise the School Board's agency fund activities. These funds are held by the individual schools of the School Board to support activities such as athletics and other student organizations, All school activity funds are audited periodically by the internal auditor. 

V1 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton. Louisiana 
11. Financial Condition (Continued) The following charts provides on analysis of the sources of revenues and the expenditures by function for the year ended June 30, 1999: ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Revenue Sources Percentage of Total Revenues 
Percentage of Total Revenues 

1. Significant Changes in Financial Condition 

Expenditures by Function Percentage of Total Expenditures 
Percentage of Total Expenditures 
49 6% 

~Ca~atOut~i 

General fund revenues increased by $3,732,447 from the prior year amount of $67,108,441. Changes were due primarily to the following: Local sources increased due to a $1,143,297 increase in ad valorem taxes The State revenue increase was due mainly to a $2,835,685 increase in state equalization funds 
Federal sources decreased $155,982 mainly due to an decrease of $265,756 in hnpact Aid funding 

V 



Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Members of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
1, Significant Changes in Financial Condition (Continued) General fund expenditures increased $4,360,388 from the prior year amount of $89,774,089. This increase was primarily due to the following: Salaries for all employees increased during the year ended June 30, 1999. Teachers and other certified employees also received an additional raise. Benefits also increased as a result. Special revenue fund expenditures increased by $535,596 from the prior year amount of$11,957,925. This increase is primarily due to increases in state and federal cost reimbursement grams. J. Cash Management The School Board has a cash management program which consists of expediting the receipt of revenues and prudently investing available cash in obligations eollateralized by instruments issued by the United States government agencies or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The total amount of interest earned for the year ended June 30, 1999, was distributed as follows: General fired Special revenue funds Debt service funds Capital projects funds Insurance fund Tota K. Debt Administration 

$247,184 235,613 187,219 208,425 1,376 ~829,817 
The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the School Board's debt position. Net bonded debt represents total bonded debt of $16,980,000 less assets in the debt service funds of $4,843,878. This data as of Jnne 30, 1999, is as follows: 

Amount Netdirectgeneral obligation bonded debt $12,136,122 
Ratio of Debt to Assessed Value Debt per Capita 
3.16..__~% .~ ! ~)__ The School Board's bond rating improved to A with Moody's Investors Service in 1996-97 and continues in effect. The bonded debt chart compares the maximum amount of indebtedness allowed by Louisiana Statutes and the actual amount of net indebtedness outstanding at year-end for the past four fiscal years. State statute defines maximum indebtedness allowed as thirty-five percent of the assessed value of property in Bossier Parish. 

140 120 100 80 60 40 20 0 ,=~i " 9.1 

Debt~ 
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Ms. Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President and Menlbers of the Board Bossier Parish School Board Benton. LO/lisiana 
1.. Risk Management The School Board maintains a combination ofsel f-insurance and stop-loss coverage to manage its risk of loss from property damage, theft, and clainls against employees. In addition, the School Board is serf-insured for group hospitalization. M. Independent and Internal Audits The reporl of ore independent certified public accotmtmlt, Allen, Green & Conlpany, LLP, follov,,s as an integral COIllpOncllt of this reporl. Their exaulinalJou of tile general-purpose financia] stalclllCnts was perfOlllled in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, inchldcd a review of tile School Board's systcnl of budgetary and accounting controls. In addition to the accounting control syslenls and Ihe use of independent auditors, tile School Board has an interna auditor who conducts internal audits as well as special audits of the operations of 'the School P, oard. N. Awards 

O. Acknowledgments 

The Government Finance Ofl]cers Association of the United Stalcs and ('anada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and tile Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Financial P, cporting m the School Board tbr its Comprehensive Annual Fmaucial Report for tile year ended June 30, 1999. Tile School Board has received both of these cerli ficates each year beginning with the fiscal year ended .hlne 30, 1991. To be awarded lhese certificates, a governnlelll unil llltlst publish all easily readable alld efficiently organized ('olnprehellsive anlll.la] Fillailcial Report, whose Ct)lltgll[S conJ'ornl to progranl standards. Such reports nlus[ satisfy both generally accepted accuuntitig principles and applicable legal requirements. These certificates are wdid Ibr a period of one year only. We belicve our current report ctlutinues to conforlll IO tile certificate requircnlents, and wc are subnlilting it to both (iFOA and ASBO. 
The preparation of this report could ]lot have been accomplished without tile efficient and dedicated services oflhe cnllile staffoflhe Fillance I)cpartlllellt. We \\,ant to express our apprcciafit)n to Illcnl for I]leJr assistance. We also l]lank the illelllbers of the School Board lbr their inlercs( illld support in planning till(.] colldticliug the J]nanciilJ operaliOllS of {Jig school systeln in a iesJlollsjbJc alltl plogrcssJ\,'c IllllllllCr. 
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented to BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
Upon recommendation of the Association's Panel of Review which has judged that the Report substantially conforms to principles and standards of ASBO's Certificate of Excellence Program 
President Executive Director 
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ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O, Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Fermnd Streel Monroe, LA 71201 Telephone: (318)388-4422 Facsimile: (318)308-4664 Web site: www.allengreencpa,com 
Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton. Louisiana 

2285 Benton Road G.O.P. Building Ill, Suite 400 Bossier Ci(y, LA 7'~111 Tetephone: (318) 741+0205 Facsimile: (318) 741-0207 
Independent Auditors' Report 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A Professional Account n0 Corp.) Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

We have audited tile accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the Bossier Parish School Board, Benton, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose fiuancial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing S tandardfi, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by nlanagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements refen'ed to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the School Board as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the proprietary fund for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The Year 2000 information on page 45 is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Technical Bulletin (TB) 99-1, Disclosures About Year 2000 Issues - an amendment of Technical Bulletin 98-1. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries ofmanagelnent regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the School Board is or will become Year 2000 compliant, that the School Board's Year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the School Board does business are or will become Year 2000 compliant. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued, under separate cover, our report dated November 18, 1999, on our consideration of the School Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Our audit was perfomled for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the School Board, taken as a whole. The accompanying combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-puq~ose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to tire general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 
Member: American Inslitule of Certified Public Accounlants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Aecountanls and American Inslilute of Certified Public Aecountmlts Division for CPA Fimls Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
The information identified in the table of contents as the introductory section and statistical section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the School Board. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in tile audit of the general- purpose financial statements and accordingly we express no opinion on it. 

Momoc, Louisiana November 18, 1999 ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Comb'med Balance SHeet All Fund Types and Account Groups June 30, 1999 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Assets: Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Investments Interfund receivable Inventory prepaid items Lend, buildings and equipment Other debits: Amount available in debt service fund Amount to be provided for payment of general long-term debt 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ***** SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECT FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS 
1,614,937 $ 1,234,673 0 5,288,123 0 10,042 O O 

6,829,676 $ 3,042,395 2,735,271 0 111,256 0 0 0 0 

4,662,142 $ 12,031 0 229,695 O 0 0 0 0 

169,019 181 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 8t1471775~ ~  L 4 903 668 ,$ 1691200 LIABILITtES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS Liabilities Accounts, salaries and other payables Interfund payable Deposits due others Deferred revenues Bonds and notes payable Capital leases payable Compensated absences payable Claims and judgements payable 

Total Liabilities Equity and other credits Investments in general fixed assets Retained earnings (Deficit) Fund balances: Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for inventory Reserved for prepaid items Reserved for debt service Unreserved Undesignated (Deficit) Total Equity and Other Credits 

$ 10,735,571 229,695 0 0 0 0 0 ___ 100,60_2. 0 

O$ 59,990 0 0 0 0 O 0 

1,352,664 1,006,191 0 O 0 0 0 O $ 11~065,868 ~5,093,746 59,990 .$~ 2,358,855 
05 0 2,942,095 0 10,042 O (5,870,230~ 

0 0 0 30,607 0 0 
05 O 0 0 0 4.843.878 7,594,245 0 (2,189,655) $ (2,918,093~$ 7,624,852,~ 4 843 878~$~ (2,18965,65~_ TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITYAND OTHER CREDITS $ 8~147~775 L12~718,59._~8 ~ 4 903 668 L 169,2oo THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 



PROPRIETARY TYPE- INTERNAL SERVICE FUND FIDUCIARY- AGENCY FUND 
1,884 $ 255,648 0 0 O 0 0 
0 0 

**ACCOUNT GROUPS GENERAL GENERAL FIXED LONG-TERM ASSETS 
1,445,453 $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 

05 O O 0 0 O 141.603.457 

DEBT 
:Statement A 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
0 $ 14,723,111 0 4,544,928 O 2,735,271 0 5,517,818 O 111,256 0 10,042 0 141.663,457 

0 4,843,878 4,843.878 0 23,55__7~907 231557,907 _ ~__.~.532 ~ $ 141 60345752====2=~84017~Z~85~,647 668 
2,252,379 $ 513,668 0 0 0 0 0 0 

05 0 1.445,453 05 05 o 0 o O 0 0 O 20,102,610 0 2,470,321 0 5,818,854 

15,603,747 5,517,818 1,445,453 122,339 20,102,610 2,470,321 5.818,854 0 100~_00 110,602 2J766~66047 }__ 1 445 453 $ 0~_ 28,4017~855 51,191,744 $ 05 (2,508,515) 0 0 0 0 
0 

0 $ 141,603,457 $ 0 0 0 $ 141,603,457 O (2,508,515) 0 0 0 0 
2,942,095 30,607 10,042 4,843,878 0 ~ (465,640) ~~ (2,50~ __ 0 $ 141,603,457~ 05 146,455,924 $ 257,532__$ 1 445453 ~ L 28401,7855 197~647,668 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valerem Sales and use Investment income Food services Tuition Other State sources: Equalization Other Fe~er~t ~ou~~es 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: tnstruction: Regular programs Special programs Other instructional programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Food services Community service programs Facilities acquisition & construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) A|| Governmental Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 SPECIAL DEBT GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE FUND FUNDS FUNDS 
$ 12,665,911 0 247,184 0 35,970 1.846,818 

0 18,689,817 235,613 1,569,373 O 808,219 
$ 3,212,908 $ 0 187,219 0 0 0 50.626,116 806,004 0 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
O 0 208,425 0 O 1,646 O 

Statement B 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
$ 15,878,819 18,669,817 878,441 1,569,373 35,976 2.656.683 
51.432,120 3,798,526 147,816 170,043 0 4,116,385 _ 11620,363 ___ 6,889~39 0 0 8~_510,002 $ 70,840,888 L_29,126~4_81__~_ 3,5701~70 $ _210,07t .$~ 103,747,610 

$ 40,668,970 $ lO,492,606 7,360,584 3,643,750 4,790,028 1,45t,92o 6,593,591 1,229,272 9,727,571 5,101,966 746,284 820,593 163,o97 9,733 1,o96,439 238,073 

47o,115 $ 2,1o6,6o4 0 
385,647 549,695 525,797 4,673 205,542 2,409,268 O 0 5,836,180 0 O O 0 

05 0 0 0 0 65,629 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O 1,880,000 1.086.705 

0 $ 4t,139,085 O 12,599,210 O 7,360,584 0 0 10,726 0 0 553,824 0 0 0 O 12,959,669 0 0 

4,029,397 5,339,723 2,054,072 6,598,264 t,434,814 12,690,663 5,101,966 746,264 6,656,773 163,097 12.969,402 2,976,439 ~,324,776 Total expenditures .~_ 94,134,477 L_12,493,5_21 .$ 3,032,334 $ 1_3,524,219 L 123,184,551_ 
EX.CESS (Oeti~ency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (23,293,589) L 16,632,9960 ~ 537,836 $ (~  $ (19~_436,941). (CONTINUED 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) All Governmental Funds For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of fixed assets 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement B 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL TOTAL REVENUE! SERVICE PROJECT (MEMORANDUM FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS ONLY) 
$ 19,019,214 $ (65,187) __ 475,124 240,000 $ {18,697,851) 0 65,187 $ 4,000,000 $ 23,324,401 0 (4,561,363) (23,324,401) 0 0 475.124 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) ~ 19,429,151 L_(18,457~8~$ 65 1j~_87 ~ (561,363) $ 475,124 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (3,864,438) $ (1,824,891) $ 603,023 $ (13,875,511) $ (18,961,817) FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR __ 946,345 ___ 9449 7_43 4 2408~8~_55 11,685,856 26,322,799 FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR $ (2,918,093) $ 7L~L62~852 ~3 8,8~_78 L~  

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

(CONCLUDED 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Sales tax investment income Tuition Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Balances (Deficits) - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmental Funds - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular ,arograms Special programs Other instructional programs Supped services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Food services Community service programs Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total expenditures 
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGET ACTUAL ~UNFAVOR~ 
12,338,644 11,650,060 254,773 35,970 2.065.296 
$ 12,356,802 $ 14,457,851 247,184 35,970 1.846.818 50,626,116 50,626,116 3,784,172 3,868,854 1,307,364 _____~0 035 

18,158 2,807,851 (7,589) 0 (218,478) 0 84,682 242.671 
82,062,333_5 L 84989630 .$~ 2,927295 
42,311,969 $ 40,668,970 $ 10,597,273 10,492,606 6,961.205 7,360,584 3,602,993 4,776,691 757,522 6,568,307 1,230,687 10,051,715 5,876,653 955,710 0 9,181 0 

3,643,750 4,790,028 1,148,155 6,593,591 1,229,272 10,266,096 5,210,939 746,284 820,593 163,097 9.733 

1,642,999 104,667 (399,379) (40,757) (13,337) (390,633) (25,284) 1,415 (214,381) 665,714 209,426 (820,593) (153,916) (9,73~ 0 618,395 (618,395) 0 68,619 ____(~,~ 93,699,906~0,712 .~t._ (1~ 
(11,637~5~_(8,641,O82).$ 2,796 489 CONTINUED) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Balances (Deficits) - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmental Funds - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Sale of t~xed assets 

BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
9,450,544 $ 4,561,363 $ (4.869,181) (150.480) (65,187) 65,293 4784,409 475,124 (3.285) TOTAL OTHER FINANCtNG SOURCES (USES) ~__ g,778,473 ~4,971,300 .$ (4,807,173) 

EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 

$ (I,659.098) $ (3,869,782) $ (2,0t0,684) 2,137.798 94634~_5 __ (1,191,453)_ $ 278700 L..~29~92323,437) $ (3,202,137) (CONTINUED) 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Sales and use Investment income Food services Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources 
Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Balances (Deficits) - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmental Funds ~ Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30, t999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Food services Total expenditures EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET 
$ 18,669,817 $ 246,820 1,569,373 844.136 
806,004 111,738 6.923.055 

ACTUAL VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
18,669,817 $ 235,613 1,569,373 808.219 

0 (11,207) 0 (35,917) 806,004 0 147,816 36,078 6 889 639 (33,416~ $_ 29,170,943 $ 29,126,481 $ (44,462) 
1,836,640 $ 697.194 470,115 $ 2.106.604 
385,647 385,647 550,478 549,695 525,577 525,797 4,673 4,673 202,176 205,542 2,407,749 2,409,268 __ 5,836,180 5,836,180 

1,366,525 (1,409,410) 
0 783 (220) 0 (3,366) (1,519) 0 12,446,3145 12,493,521 $ (47,207) 

~, 16,724,629 $ 16,632,960 $ (91,669) (CONTINUED 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Balances (Deficits) - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmontal Funds - Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 Statement C 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
$ 240,000 $ 240,000 __ (18,697,851~(1~ $ TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ~; (18,457,851~_ ~; (18,457,851) $ 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 
$ (1,733,222) $ (1,824,891) $ (91,669) __ 9 451 939 9,449,743 J2,196) 

(CONTINUED) 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Investment income State sources Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) o Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmental Funds - Debt Service Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Support services: General admir~istration Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges 
Total expenditures EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
3.212,908 $ 181.739 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
3,212,908 $ 187,219 170,043 170,043 

0 5.480 0 ~__ 3,564,690 $ 3,570,170 $ 5.480 
$ 05 1,880,000 _ 1 087 147 

65,629 $ 1,880,000 1.086,705 
(65.629) 0 442 

2,967,147 $ 3,032,334 $ (65,187) 
597,5435 537,836 $ (59,707) 

~__  0 $ 65,187 $ 65,187 0 $ 65,187 $ 65,187 
597.543 $ 603,023 $ 

__ 4,240.855 4=~240,855 
5,480 O 

=$_ 4,838,398 $ 4,843~878 $ 5,480 CONTINUED 



REVENUES Local sources: Investment income Other 
Total revenues 

DOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Denton. Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Dalances (Deficits) - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual Governmental Funds - Capital Project Funds For the Year Ended June 30, t999 Statement C 

EXPENDITURES Current: Support services: General administration Plant services Facilities acquisition and construction 
Total expenditures EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 

BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE~ 
208.425 $ 208,425 $ 0 0 1,646 1,646 

$ 208,4255 210,071 
$ 0 $ 10,726 $ (10,726) 548,480 553,824 (5,344) __ 11,943,646 11,934,533 9,113 
$___ 12,492,126 $ 12,499,083 $ (6,957). 
~__ (12,283,701~. $ (12,289,012) $ (5,311~ 
$ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 0 __ (4,561,363) (45,5661,363) 0 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ~_~ 3~ $ (561,363) $ 0 

EXCESS(Deficient) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 
$ (12,845,064) $ (12,850,375) $ (5,311) ____ 11,635,890_ 11 6~85,856 49,966 $~ 4~ $ (~ $ 44,655 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

(CONCLUDED 



OPERATING REVENUE Premiums 
OPERATING EXPENSES Claims 
Operating income (loss) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES Earnings on investments Net income (loss) 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit) Statement D Proprietary Fund Type For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR 

INTERNAL SERVICE 
13.336.613 
13.502.674 
(166,061) 
1.376 (164,685) 
2.343.830 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Fund Type For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) Decrease in receivables Increase (Decrease) in accounts payables Increase (Decrease) in interfund payables 
Net Cash Provided (used) for Operating Activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Earnings on investments 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

Statement E 
NTERNALSERVICE 
(166,061) 
206,752 12,791 (57,833) (4,351) 
1.376 
(2,975) 
4.859 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton~ Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 INDEX NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNiFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .. A. REPORTING ENTITY B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds Account Groups C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING.. Governmental Fmlds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds D. BUDGETS General Budget Policies Encumbrances Budget Basis of Accounting E. CAStt AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F. INVESTMENTS G. SHORT-TERM 1NTERFUND RECEIVABLES~PAYABLES .. l t. INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS 1. FIXEI) ASSETS J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS L. FUND EQUITY M. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS N. SALES TAXES O. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS P. DEFERRED REVENUES Q. CAPITAL LEASES R. MEMORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUMNS S. USE OF ESTIMATES NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY A. Deficit Fund Balances/Retained Earnings B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds NOTE 3 - BUDGET/GAAP RECONCILIATION NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE 6- RECEIVABLES NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS NOTE 10 - SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

.,18 .,18 .,18 .,19 .,19 ~, 20 ., 20 ., 20 ., 20 .,21 .. 22 ,. 22 ., 22 ~. 22 ., 23 ., 23 ., 23 ~. 24 .. 24 .. 24 .. 25 ., 26 ., 26 .. 27 ., 27 .. 27 .. 27 ., 28 ., 28 .. 28 .. 28 .. 28 .. 29 .. 30 .. 30 .. 32 .. 33 .. 33 .. 33 .. 35 .. 36 ~ .36 (Cominucd) 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 INDEX 
NOTE 12 - LEASES NOTE 13 - AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTiIERS NOTE 14 -GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES NOTE 17 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS NOTE 20 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES 

Page .. 36 .. 37 .. 37 .. 39 ~. 40 ..41 .. 42 .. 43 .. 43 (Concluded) 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The accompanying financial statements of the School Board have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. A. REPORTING ENTITY TIDe Bossier Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 17:51 to provide public education for the children within Bossier Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the state of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is comprised of twelve members who are elected from twelve districts for terms of four years. The School Board operates twenty eight schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 18,787 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or adult education programs. In addition, tide School Board provides transportation and school food services for the students. GA SB Statement 14 establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the School Board is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately elected goveroing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local goveruments. As used in GASB Statement 14, fiscally independent means that the School Board may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issued bonded debt. The School Board also has no component ulffts, defined by GASB Statement 14 as other legally separate organizations for which the elected School Board members are financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with which the School Board has a significant relationship. B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 
TIDe accounts of the School Board are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups, A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund aceounling segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued) The funds of'the Sehoo[ B~>ard are ciassifle~ ir~to three categories" goverm~er~~at, proprielary a~6 fld,aci~v?. 111 turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. The fund and account group classifications and a description &each existing fund type follow: 
Governmental Funds Govcnunental fm~ds are used to account for the School Board's geueral government activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, lhe acquisition or constructio11 of general fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-ierul debt. Governmental funds include: General fund the primary operating fired of the School Board. It accounts for all financial resources of the School Board, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Special reveOue funds - account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects). Debt service funds - account for the scrvicin[: of general long-tenn debt not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. Capital projects funds - account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capita projects not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of ccononric resources nreasuremeot focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues arc recorded when earued and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The school board has elected pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, to apply all GASB pronouncements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. Proprietary funds include the following: 
1 nternal service funds - account for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies of the goveromenl, or to other goveruments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The School Board maintains the following fund: Group health insurance fund - Monies in this fund are used to pay employee health insurance claims, the administrative cost to the insurance administrator for administration of the plan and to pay reinsurance cost. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued) Fiduciary Fnnds Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agcnl on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or oll behalf of other funds within the School Board. Trust fimds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust agrccmenl. Agen0, Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fired is used to account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity. The agency fund is as follows: School activity agency fund -- accounts for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the individual schools and school organizations. Account Groups The generalfixed assets account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or trusl funds. 
The general long-term debt account group is used to account for general loug-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds. 
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING Governmental Funds The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. Goverumental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable" means the amounl of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest and principal payments on general long-tema debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

20 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton~ Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for tile Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) Governmental Funds (Continued) With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities arc generally included o11 the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures: Revenues Ad valorem taxes are susceptible to accrua Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month collcctcd by the Bossier Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission and or by the Louisiana Department of Public Safety and Corrections, Public Safety Services, Office of Motor Vehicles. Entitlements and shared revenues (which include state equalization and state revcnue sharing) are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. Other receipts beconle measurable and available when cash is received by the School Board and are recognized as revenue at that time. Expenditures 
Salaries are recorded as paid. Salaries for nine-month employees who elect to be paid over twelve months are accrued at June 30. Other Financine Sources (Uses Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, et cetera) are accounted for as oilier financing sources (uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are accounted for on die flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the lime the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) Fiduciary Funds The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or bave a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the Sclmol Board holds for others in an agency capacity. D. BUDGETS General Budeet Policies The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the combined l]nancial statements: Slate slatule requires budgets be adopled for the general fund and all special revenue funds. The School t~,oard also adopts budgels for the debt service and capital projects funds. 

Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) lapse at year end. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in govenm~ental funds. Oulslanding encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, contracts) lapse al year end. To the extent the Board intends to honor the purchase orders and commitments, they are reported as reservations of fund balances. Authorization for the eventual expenditure will be included in the following year's budget appropriations. 



Bossier Parish School Board Beuloll~ Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Finaueial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) D. BUDGETS (Continued) ntin All governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) except for the general fund and the capital projecl funds. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board. By state statute, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes also require the Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The Board approves budgets for the geueral fund, debt service funds, and capital project funds at the function level and at the fund level for the special revenue funds, which are the legal level of budgetary control in each case. Management can transfer amounts between liue items within a function without seeking Board approval. The debt service funds' budgets and capital project funds' budgets are approved by the Board. By statute, the Board is not required to adopt budgets for its debt service fuuds nor for its capital project funds. E. CASII AND CASII EQUIVALENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and time deposit accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in lime deposits and those investments with original maturities of ninety days or less. Under state law, the School Board may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing delnand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national bauks having their principal offices in Louisiana. F. INVESTMENTS Investments are limited by LSA-R.S. 33:2955 and the School Board's investment policy. If the original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are required/permitted as per GASB Statement No. 31 : 1. Investments in nonparticipath~g interest-earning contracts, such as nonnegotiable certificates of deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reported using a cost-based measure. 2. The School Board reported at amortized cost money market investments and partieipatitttttttt~g interest- earning investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for tire Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) F, INVESTMENTS (Continued) Definitions: Interest-earning investment contracts include trine deposits with financial institutions (such as certificates of deposit), repurchase agreemenls, and guaranteed investment contracts. Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments including U. S. Treasury obligations. G. SIIORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 
IL INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS Except as noted below, acquisition of materials and supplies are accounted for on the purchase melhod, that is, the expenditures are charged when the items are purchased. The value of these materials and supplies arc not considered s gn fieant at Ju ~e 30, 1999, and is not shown in the accompanying balance sheet. Inventory of the school food service special revenue fund consists of food purchased by the School Board and commodities granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of Agrieulture and Forestry. Both purchased food and commodities in the school food service special revenue fund are accounted for on the consumption method. All purchased inventory items are valued al cost (first-in, first-out), and commodities are assigned values based on information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. Purchased food inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that these do not constitute "available spendable resources," even though they are a component of total assets. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 1. FIXED ASSETS Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the School Board are recorded in the general fixed assets account group at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Interest during construction is not capitalized on general fixed assets. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton~ Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I. FIXED ASSETS (Contintled) Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that are immovable and of value only to the government) are not capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not included in the general fixed assets account group. J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES All twelve-month employees earu fi'om ten to twenty days of vacation leave each year, depending on their length of service with the School Board. Vacation leave may be accumulated and carried forward to the next calendar year. Upon termination, employees may be paid for up to thirty days of unused vacation leave. Nine- month employees earn two work days of personal leave per academic year, which is non-cumulative. All School Board employees cam from ten to thirteen days of sick leave each year, depending upon the number of mouths employed. Sick leave can be accunmlated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, unused accumulated sick leave of up to twenty-five days is paid to the employee or to the employee's estate at the employee's current rate of pay. Under the Louisiana Teachers Retirement System, the total unused accumulated sick leave, including the twenty-five days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service. Under the Louisiana School Employees Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave, which excludes the twenty-five days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earued service. Sabbatical leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and for professional and cultural improvement. Any employee with a teachiug certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one semester of sabbatical leave after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of continuous service. The School Board's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follows GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics should be accrued as liability as the benefits are earned by the employees if both of the following conditions are met: A. The employees' right to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered B. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid lime off or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement. GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick leave should be accrued usiug one of the following termination approaches: 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benion, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued) A. An accrual for earucd sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that tile benefits will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or other contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals. B. Alteruatively, a goverumental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability based on the sick leave accumulated at tile balance sheet date by those employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the fi~ture to receive such payments. Accruals for compensated absences include both salary and salary-related benefits Sabbatical leave benefits arc recorded as expenditures in the period paid. Only the current portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported in the fund. The current portion is the amount left unpaid at the end of the reporting period that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The remainder of the liability is reported in the general long-term obligations account group. K. I.ONG-TER1M OBLIGATIONS The School Board reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt account group, Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be fiinanced with current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by the proprietary fund are reported as liabilities. For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discount, issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, arc reported as debt service expenditures. For the proprietary fund, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. L. FUND EQUITY Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific puq)ose. Designations of fund balances represent tentative management plans that are subject to change 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Fiuancial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) M. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanenl transfers &equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other inierfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. N. SALES TAXES The School Board receives sales tax revenue from the following two sales taxes The voters of Bossier Parish approved on April 15, 1969, a one cent parish-wide sales tax to be used to supplement salaries and benefits of teachers and other School Board employees and for the operation of parish public schools. The voters of Bossier Parish approved on September 16, 1978, a one half cent parish-wide sales lax to be used for the rcliremenl oflhe School Board's sales tax bonds, the maintenance and upkeep of the school system's air conditioners and any other lawful purpose of the school system. 

O. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS Losses resulting from claims and judgements arc estimated in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10. The liabilities for such losses recorded in the governmental funds and the proprietary fund are for the amount that will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The remainder of the liabilities are recorded in the general long-term debt account group, lncurred but not reported claims as of June 30, 1999, have been considered in determining the accrued liabilities. P. DEFERRED REVENUES The School Board reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Defen'ed revenues arise when resources are received by the School Board before it has a legal claim lo them, as when grant monies are received prior 1o ll~e incurrenee of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) Q. CAPITAL LEASES Capital leases are recorded as expenditures and other financing sources at inception in governmental funds at an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease payments. The asset is recorded ill the general fixed assets account group. R. MEMORANDUM ONLY- TOTAL COLUMNS 
Total columns on tile geueral-purpose financial statements are captioned as "memorandunl only" because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, lntcrfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. S. USE OF ESTIMATES Tile preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires mauagelnent to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and tile reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. NOTE 2 - STEWARI)SltlP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY A. Deficit Fund Balances/Retained Earnings The following funds have a deficit in the fund balance/retained earnings at June 30, 1999 
Ftmd General fund Special revenue funds: Region VII service center Air conditioner repair and replacement Capital project funds: One-half cent sales tax air conditioner Capital project reserve Proprietary fund - internal service Group health insurance Management expects 1o correct these deficits by reduction of discretionary expenditures 

Deficit Amount $2,918,093 76 5,489 417,261 1,772,394 2,508,515 



Bossier Parish School Board Bentolh Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds Some funds reflected unfavorable budget variances of less than $500. Because these amounts are immateria both individually and collectively, they have not been listed below. The following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year coded Jone 30 1999: Unfavorable Enn_A General fund: Current: Other instructional programs Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Plant services Food services Comnmnity service programs Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Special revenue funds: Title I Special education Region VII service center BEEF fund Debt service funds: Unified tax fund: Current: General administration Capital project funds One-half cent sales tax air conditioner Unified construction fund 

Bud2~ Actual 
$ 6,961,205 3,602,993 4,776,691 757,522 6,568,307 10,051,715 9.181 
2,424,174 933,878 119,738 159,437 
548,480 

$ 7,360,584 3,643,750 4,790,028 1,148,155 6,593,591 10,266,096 820,593 163,097 9,733 618,395 68,619 2,456,006 936,866 123,108 167,955 
65,629 553,824 10,726 

Variance 
$399,379 40,757 13,337 390,633 25,284 214,381 820,593 153,916 9,733 618,395 68.619 31,832 2,988 3,370 8,518 
65,629 5,344 10,726 Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expenditures occurring after the last budget revision. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 3 -. BUDGET/GAAP RECONCILIATION The following schedule reconciles the amount on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget-to-actual (Statement C) to the amount on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Slatement B): 
Fund balance (Deficit) per Slalcment C Revenoes Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Expenditures Current: General administration Plant services Student transportation services Debt Service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Facilities acquisilion and construction Other Financing Sources: Operating transfers in Fund balance (Deficit) per Statement B 

General Fund 
Capital Project . Funds $(2,923,437) $(1,164,519) 

309,109 (14,457,851) 
( 303,765) (538,525) ( 108,973) 478,044 169,454 
14,457,851 (1,025,136) 

Budget/GAAP reporting differences in the General Fund are primarily a result of reclassification. Sales taxes were reported as operating transfers in for GAAP purposes, but were budgeted as revenues for budget purposes. Debt service expenditures for capital leases were reported separately for GAAP reporting purposes, but were reported in the appropriate flmctional calegory for budget purposes. Budget/GAAP reporting differences in lhe Capital Project Funds are a result of a year-end accruals. For budget purposes, expenditures are treated as cash basis items. For GAAP purposes, additional accruals were necessary. NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES The School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property located within Bossier Parish's boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the stale of Louisiana Tax Commission. The Bossier Parish Sheriffs Office bills and collects property taxes for the School Board. Collections are remitted to the School Board monthly. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued) 
Levy date Tax bills mailed Total taxes are due Lien date Penalties and interest are added Tax sale 

Property Tax Calendar December 31, 1998 November 24, 1998 December 31, 1998 January 1, 1999 January 1, 1999 May 27, 1999 Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform basis at the following ratios of assessed value to fair market value. 10% land 10% residenlial improvements 15% industrial improvements 15% inachinery 15% commercial improvements 25% public service properties, excluding land A revaluation of all property is required after 1978 to be completed no less than every four years. The last revaluation was completed for tile roll of January l, 1996. Total assessed value was $384,390,690 for calendar year 1998. Louisiana state law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed value of a taxpayer's primary residence from parish property taxes. This homestead exemption was $115,097,350 of the assessed value in calendar year 1998. State law requires the sheriffto collect property taxes in the calendar year in wlfich the assessment is made. Property taxes become delinquent January 1 of the following year. lftaxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25 percent per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the sheriffis required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana 1o sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed. 
All property taxes are recorded in the general fund and debt service fund on the basis explained in note 1. Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past experience which will not be collected in the subsequent year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll. Available means due, or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The remaining property taxes receivable are considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent 10 year-end. The tax roll is prepared by the parish tax assessor in November of each year. Tile collection of the 1999 property taxes occurs in December, and January and February of the next year, As a result, no property taxes receivable for 1999 taxes is included on the accompanying balance sheet because it is not available within 60 days of the School Board's year-end. Historically, virtually all ad valorem taxes receivable were collected since they are secured by property. Therefore, there is no allowance for uncollectible taxes. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued) The following is a summary of authorized and levied (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) ad valorem taxes 

Parish-wide taxes: Constitutional Special maintenance and operations Special salaries and related benefits Special salaries and related benefits Bond and interest 

Date of Voter Authorized Levied Expiration Approval Millage Millage Date Statutory Oct. 16, 1993 Oct. 16, 1993 April 20, 1996 
4.22 9.61 9.61 24.98 Variable 
4.22 9.61 9.61 24.98 12.97 
Statutory 2003 2003 2006 1999 The difference between authorized and levied m illages are the result of the rcassessment of taxable property required by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. NOTE 5 - CASlt AND CASII EQUIVALENTS At June 30, 1999, the School Board has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $14,723,111 Deposits are staled at cost, which approximates fair value. Under state law, deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The fair value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a lmlding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

At year-end, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $8,108,469 and the bank balance was $9,413,178. Of the bank balance, $639,030 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the School Board's agent in the School Board's name (GASB Category 1). The remaining balance of $8,774,148 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the School Board's name (GASB Category 3). Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. At year end, cash equivalents carried at fair value not included in the above deposits totaled $6,614,642. These cash equivalents were composed &short-term (less than 90 days) investments in government securities. Because the securities were held by the School Board's agent in the name of the School Board, these cash equivalents are considered Category 1 under the provisions of GASB Statement 3. 



Bossier Parish Scltool Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 6- RECEIVABLES 
Tile receivables of $4,544,928 as of June 30, 1999, are as follows 
Class of Receivables lnlergovernmental Local Ad valorem taxes Sales taxes State Federal Accounts Interest Aceounls 
NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS 

Special Debt Capital lnlemal General Revenue Service Project Service Fund Funds Fund Funds Fund 
$ 22,846 $ 1,872,934 927,578 37,642 181,650 954,845 19,572 83,027 37,734 _ 139,240 

$ 6,106 $ $ $ 28,952 
5,925 255,648 

1,872,934 965,220 1,136,495 63,412 477,915 $1,234,673 $3,042,395 $12,031 .$1_81 $255,648 $4,544,928 
The changes in general fixed assets are as follows 
Land Buildings and improvements Furniture and equipment Transportation equipment Construction in progress Total NOTE 8- RETIREMENT SYSTEMS Plan description 

Balance 1, 1998 $ 416,428 $ 95,734,807 17,309,425 3,269,465 8,495,613 4~25,933 11,824,268 $126,582,206 -$15,093,733 

Balance Deletions June 30, 1999 $ 4 ] 6,428 95,734,807 72,482 20,506,408 8,495,613 16,450,201 

Substantially all School Board employees participate in either the Teachers' Retirement System or the Scimol Employees' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems (PERS). Benefit provisions are ultimately approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 8- RETIREMENT SYSTEMS Participation in the Teachers' Retirement System is divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan and llle Teachers' l'lan A. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System (TRS); other employees, such as custodial persomael and bus drivers, are members of the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS). Generally, all full-time employees are eligible to participate in the system. With respect to the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, nornaal retirement is at age sixty with ten years of service, or at any age with twenty years of service. The formula for annual maximum retirement benefits is generally two percent (with less than twenty-fve years of service) or 2.5 percent (with twenty-five or more years of service) times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months (plus $300 applicable to persons becoming members prior to July 1, 1986). Under the Teachers' Retirement System Plan A, normal retirement is generally at any age with 30 or more years of creditable service, at age fifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age sixty with at least ten years of creditable service. The retirement benefit fonnula is generally three perccnt times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months plus $24 per year of service. Employees participating in the School Employees' Retirement System are eligible for normal retirement after thirty years of service, or after twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or after ten years of service at age sixty. The maximum retirement allowance is computed at 2.5 percent times the highest thirty-six months of average salary, times the years of service plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times the years of service. Both TRS and LSERS issue annual financial reports. The reports can be obtained by telephoning or writing to the following: Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Post Office Box 94123 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 (225) 925-6446 Funding J%liey 
Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System Post Office Box 44516 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 (225) 925-6484 

Each system is administered and controlled at the state level by a separate board of tnJstees, with contribution rates approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Benefits of the systems are funded by employee and employer contributions. Benefits granted by the retirement systems are guaranteed by the state of Louisiana under provisions of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The School Board's employer contribution for the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the state of Louisiana through mmual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. For the LSERS, the School Board's employer contribution is funded by tile state of t.ouisiana through annual appropriations. In addition, the employer does not remit to the Teachers' Retirement System, Regular Plan or Plan A, the employer's contribution for the professional improvement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PiP contribution is made directly to the Retirement System by the state of Louisiana. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) Contribution rates (as a percentage of covered salaries) for active plan members as established by the Louisiana Legislature for the year ended June 30, 1999 are as follows: .Employee Employer Louisiana "reachers' Retirement System: Regular Plan A Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System 8.00% 9,10% 6,35% 16.50% 16.50% 6.00% Total covered payroll of the School Board for TRS - Regular Plan, TRS - Plan A, and LSERS for the year ended June 30, 1999 amounted to $51,558,772, $610,980, and $5,927,270, respectively. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 1999 and each of the two preceding years are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 1997 June 30, 1998 June 30. 1999 

Annual Aetuarially Required Contribution 
$8,518,853 8,651,486 9,625,432 

Percentage of Annual Required Contribution Paid 92.32 88.89 89.37 

LSERS Annual Aetuarially Required Contribution $329,916 350,707 369,227 

Percentage of Annual Required Contribution Paid 100.36 96.32 96.32 
Annual actuarially required contributions for each plan above is based on the plan's annual financial report for that year except for the year ended June 30, 1999. Each annual actuarially required contribution for the year ended June 30, 1999 is based upon each plan's annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 1998 which is tlae latest information available. NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS In accordance with state statutes, the Bossier Parish School Board provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees were provided through an insurance program, wlmse monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employees and the School Board. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $2,130,320 in 1999 for approximately 1,014 retirees. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for tile Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 10 - SALARIES AND OTItER PAYABLES The payables of $15,704,349 at June 30, 1999, are as follows 
Salaries and wifllholding Accounts Incurred but not reported claims Tota 

Special Capital General Revenue Project Fund Funds Funds $ 7,398,656 3,152,350 184,565 $ 935,219 327,914 $ 1,352,664 
Internal Service Fund Total $ - $ 8,333,875 496,687 5,329,615 1,755,692 1 940 257 ~ 71 ~1,2_~ 15~352,664 $2,252,37_9 ~!5,603,747 NOTE 11 - COMPENSATE1) ABSENCES 

At June 30, 1999, employees of the School Board have accunmlated and vested $5,818,854 of employee leave benefits, including $748,302 of salary-related benefits. Employee leave benefits are computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60. This amount is not expected to be paid from current available resources; therefore the liability of $5,818,854 is recorded within the general long4erm debt account group. NOTE 12 - LEASES The School Board records items uudcr capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying financial statements. The following is an analysis of equipment under capital leases: ~Fyp e 25 school bases Energy equipment 
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Total $ 970,454 4,000,186 $4,970,640 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 14 -. GENERAl, LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) All School Board bonds/notes outstanding at June 30, 1999, in the amount of $20,102,610 are general obligation bonds and notes payable. 
School District 
General Obligation Bonds Parish-wide- 1996 Parish-wide- 1997 General Obligation Notes Notes Payable - EPA Notes Payable - EPA Certificate of Indebtedness 

Final Principal Issue Remaining Payment Interest 1o Outstanding Date Amount Interest Rates Due Maturity June 30, 1999 
1996 9,000,000 4.50% - 10.00% 3-01-16 $ 5,054,130 $ 8,980,000 1997 8,000,000 4.50%- 10.00% 3-01-17 5,320,500 8,000,000 1988 579,609 Non-interest 7-01-05 N/A 174,956 1988 1,011,499 Non-interest 7-31-08 N/A 477,654 1998 3,000,000 4.30%- 5.30% 2-01-03 __ 283,682 2,470,000 

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish and through general fund operations. At June 30, 1999, the School Board has accumulated $4,843,878 in the debt service funds for future debt requirements. General obligation bonds payments are paid from the debt service fund. General obligation notes are paid from the general fund. The bonds and notes are due as follows 
Years Ending June 30, 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005-2017 Less interest Total principa 
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General Obligation Bonds 
$ 1,569,730 1,559,930 1,547,23(I 1,541,63(I 1,527,33(I 19,608,781. 27,354,631 10,374,631_ 

General Obligation Notes 
$ 762,542 768,246 782,364 794,106 88,394 210,640 3,406,292 283,682 

$ 2,332,272 2,328,176 2,329,594 2,335,736 1,615,724 19,819,421 30,760,923 10,658,313 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 14 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long-tern1 bonded debt in excess of 35 percent of the assessed value of taxable property. At June 30, 1999, the statutory limit is $134,536,742, and outstanding net bonded debt totals $12,136,122. NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS lnterfund receivables/payables: Receivable fund _Payable fund General fund 

General fund 
General fund 
General fund 

Special revenue funds: Title I Title VI Math and science - Title 11 Special education Preschool Title IV Region VII service center Sales tax School food service BEEF fund Air conditioner repair and replacement Goals 2000 
Debt service funds Unified tax fund Capital project funds: One-half cent sales tax air conditioner Unified construction fund 
lnlernal service fund Debt service funds: Public school bond reserve General fund Tota 
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Amount 
$ 457,469 43,501 19,915 357,899 32,444 37,864 10,210 2,626,064 31,684 14,068 145 77,011 3,708,274 
59,990 
561,304 444,887 1,006,191 513,668 
229,695 $5,517,818 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) lntcrfund operating transfers Operaling transfers for the year ended June 30, 1999, were as follows Fund name - transfer in General fund 

Special revenue funds: School food service Debt service funds: Unified tax fund Capital project funds: One-half cent sales tax air conditioner 
Tota 

.Amount Special revenue funds: Sales tax $14,457,851 Capital project funds: One-half cent sales tax air conditioner 4,561,363 Special revenue funds Sales tax 
General fund Special revenue funds Sales tax 

NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES Reservations Enennlbrauces Reserve 

240,000 
65,187 
4,000,000 
.$23,324,401 

This amount presents the portion of fund balance relating to outstanding purchase orders at year-cod Inventory Reserve This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating to inventory on hand which is therefore unavailable to be expended for other purposes. Prenaid Items Reserve This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating to expenditures that will benefit future periods Debt Service 
This amount represents the portion of fund balance lhat has been reserved in the debt service fund for future payment of principal and interest on bonded debt. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES (Continued) Designations: Risk Retention This amount represents a portion of fund balance that has been designated to fund possible losses from lawsuits and self-insurance liability. NOTE 17 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS ~ation The School Board is a defendant in several other lawsuits. Management and legal counsel for the School Board believe that the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance would not materially affect the School Board's combined financial position. SelGlnsuranee The School Board is partially self-insured for workers' compensation, health insurance and general liability coverage. Claims are funded through employee contributions and operating funds of the School Board. The School Board maintains stop-loss coverage with an insurance company for claims in excess of $250,000 per occurrence for workers' compensation and $100,000 for health insurance coverage. All known claims filed and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on experience of the School Board are made and accrued as necessary in the financial statements. Grant Disallowance The School Board participates in a number of federal awards programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 lhrough June 30, 1999, lhese programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits and resolution of previously identified questioned costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be delcrmined at this time, although the School Board expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. Tax Arbitraee Rebate Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebaled to the Internal Revenue Service ORS). Management believes there is no tax arbitrage liability at year end. Construction Proieels 
The construction of two new schools was in progress at year-end. The construction cost is being funded by the issuance of general obligation bonds. Costs incurred on this project and estimated total cost to complete are $16,450,201 and $2,358,275, respectively, as of June 30, 1999. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to tile General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT The School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits involving civil actions. The School Board currently reports all of its risk management activities except for employees' health insurance in the general fund and the general long term debt account group. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported. This liability is the School Board's best estimate based on available information. The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' compensation many years ago. During the fiscal year a total of $215,080 was paid in claims. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $250,000. The School Board initiated a risk management program for employees health insurance several years ago. Premitnns are paid iuto the health insurance internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $100,000. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the individual funds' payroll and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. The incurred but not reported claims at year end of $1,755,692 has been accrued based ulmn the third party administrator's calculation using historical claim experience. The internal service fund - health insurance had net loss for the fiscal year of $164,685 and at June 30, 1999, had a fund deficit of $2,508,515. Changes in the claims amount in previous fiscal years were as follows 
Group health insurance 1997-1998 1998-1999 Workers' compensation 1997-1998 1998-1999 Claims and judgements (general fund) 1997-1998 1998-1999 Claims and judgements (general long-term debt account group) 199%1998 1998-1999 

Beginning of Fiscal Year Liability _ $2,514,732 2,239,588 93,002 138,314 103,997 103,997 
92,191 10,000 

Claims and Changes in Estimates $12,054,856 13,502,674 178,924 261,331 
2,433 

Benefit Payments and Claims $12,330,000 13,489,883 133,612 215,080 
5,828 
82,191 

Balance at Fiscal Year-End $2,239,588 2.252.379 138,314 184,565 103,997 100,602 
10,000 10.000 The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 NOTE 19 -, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS On July 19, 1999, the School Board issued an additional $3 million certificate of indebtedness. Debt service payments will begin in March 2000 and end March 2004. Debt service requirements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000 total $530,000 and $82,325 of principal and interest respectively. NOTE 20 -ON-BEIIALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying agent) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement No. 24 requires employer governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expellses for these on-behalf payments. The state of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional hnprovement Program) directly to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of $91,469. This amount was recognized as state revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the applicable fund from which the salary was paid. 



Bossier Parish School Board 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION June 30, 1999 On March 29, 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Technical Bulletin (TB) 99-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues - an amendment of Technical Bulletin 98-1. The amendment, among other things, provides that required year 2000 disclosures may be reported as required supplementary information. The School Board has elected to report the year 2000 disclosures as required supplemental information below. 
Year 2000 lnformalion The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other electronic equipment that may adversely affect the government's operations. The School Board has been engaged in the year 2000 effort for over a year. All of the major support systems have been reviewed and upgraded where necessary. The schools' bell and security systems are year 2000 compliant. Power, water, and telephone delivery systems are compliant according to utility company statements received during the last three months. Critical computer systems, such as Payroll, Accounting, Student, and Special Education, have been converted and are on line and in use at this time. The School Board does not expect any delays in submitting timely data to the state Department of Education or to tlle federal government. The School Board has been running under year 2000 compliant software since March 1999. The School Board's servers and routers and the software being nm in the schools lms been determined to be in compliance since all of the networking equipment is less than two years old. Older software may not function properly but that is not a major concern. The telephone system, AUI)EX, has also been given a green light by Lucent Technologies. The state of Louisiana distributes a substantial sum of money to the Board in the form of"foundation" and federal and state grant payments. The foundation payments are based on student and financial data collected from the School Board and its schools. The state is responsible for remediating their systems to be year 2000 compliant. The City of Bossier City collects and distributes all parish sales taxes. The Bossier Parish Sheriffs Office collects and distributes all parish property taxes. These offices are responsible for remediating their systems to be year 2000 compliant. The School Board estimates that future expenditures to make systems year 2000 compliant will not be significant. The School Board is ready for year 2000 to the best of the School Board's knowledge, ltowever, because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remedialion efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the School Board is or will be year 2000-ready, that the School Board's remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the School Board does business will be year 2000-ready. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



TITLE 1 

Bossier Parish School Board Bentou, Louisiana 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

This program was designed to improve the educational opportunities of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed in the regular school program, attain grade level proficiency and improve achievement in basic and more advanced skills. Primarily for provision of compensatory instructional activities to educationally deprived children tllat reside in low-income areas and have been selected on the basis of a needs assessment. Services supplement, not supplant, those normally provided by state and local educational agencies. TITLE VI This program was designed 1o assist stale and local educational agencies to improve elementary and secondary education. Grants are awarded for studcnts at risk of failure in school; instructional materials; school-wide improvements and effective school programs; training and professional development; early identification of children with reading disabilities, personal excellence of students and student achievements; and innovative enhancenlents projects to the educational program and climate of the school. MATII AND SCIENCE - TITLE I1 This program was designed to improve the skills of leachers and thc quality of instruction in mathematics and science, also to increase the accessibility of such instruction to all students. SPECIAl. EDUCATION This program was designed to provide grants to states to assist them in providing a flee appropriate public education to all childreu with disabilities. PRESCIIOO1, SPECIAL EDUCATION - PRESCHOOL GRANTS 
This program was designed to provide grants to stales to assist them in providing a free appropriate public education to preschool disabled children aged three through five years. AYMENTS TO STATES FOR CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE This program was designed to make grants available to assist low-income families with child care services. The purpose of the program is to increase the availability, affordability, and quality of child care and to increase the availability of early childhood development and before- and after-school programs. 
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(Continued) 



PRESCIIOOL (Continued) PRESCIlOOL GRANTS 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Source of funding for the preschool special revenue fund also includes funding from the state of Louisiana. TITLE IV This program was designed to establish state and local programs of alcohol and drag abuse education and prevention coordinated with related community efforts and resources. REGION VII SERVICE CENTER This program was designed to provide workshops for teachers and administrators. The Teacher Evaluation Program is coordinated through this program. Workshops provide points to administrators towards their continuing education. SALES TAX The sales tax fund accounts for the collection of sales tax in Bossier Parish. The monies are thereafter transferred to the appropriate fund for expeuditures. SCltOOL FOOD SERVICE National School Food Service Program School Breakfast Program Food Distribution Commodities This program was designed to assist through cash grants and food donatious in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch service for school students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural commodities, BEEF FUND This fund was initially set up as part of state legislation in 1985 and represents revenue from the horse racing facility in Bossier Parish. The annual proceeds are to be used for the enhancement of education in Bossier Parish. AIR CONDITIONER REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT The air conditioner repair and replacement fund provides for the maintenance and upkeep of the school system's parish-wide air conditioning program. This fund was established by transfers from the one-half percent sales tax air couditioning capital projects fund. 
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(Continued) 



GOALS 2000 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

This program was designed to provide grants to state education agencies (SEAs) on a formula basis to support the dcvelopmeut and implementation of comprehensive reform plans at the state, local and school levels to improve the teaching and learning of all children. 
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ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Investments Inventory TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities: Accounts, salaries and other payables Interfund payable Deferred revenues Total Liabilities 
Fund Balances: Reserved for inventory Unreserved - undesignated (Deficit) Total fund balances (Deficit) 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Balance Sheet Special Revenue Funds June 30. 1999 
TITLE I TITLE Vl 
464,136 $ 556,473 0 0 

44,338 $ 10,167 0 0 

MATH AND SCIENCE- TITLEII 
10,392 $ 22,014 0 0 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
319,833 220,131 0 0 $1~L.=.====....~5o5~__ 32,4065 539 964 

563,14o $ 457,469 o 11,oo4 $ 43,5Ol o 11,29o $ 19,915 1.201 176,572 357,899 5.493 
1,020,609. ~; 54,505 L 32,406 $ 539,964 
$ o$ o$ o$ 0 o o o o $ o$ 05 o$ o 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1~9_ ~ 54,50=~5 $ 32,406 $ 539,964 
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PRESCHOOL 
REGION VII SERVICE TITLE IV CENTER 

4,104 $ 34,042 O 0 
12,521 $ 49,729 0 0 

05 35,563 0 0 

SALES TAX 
2,173,885 $ 1,874,965 0 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
1,041,650 $ 27,975 236 0 111 256 

Exhibit I 
BEEF FUND 
2,699,164 176,955 2,735,035 0 38 146 }.,.~ 62,2505=. 35,563 $,=~,====4.~4O488,.~5OL1~~ 1 1~54 

5,702 $ 32,444 o 24,386 $ 37,864 o 25,429 $ lO,210 o 1,248 $ 2,626.064 402,307 $ 31.684 0 111 256 24,077 14,o68 0 ~; 38,146 ~,____ 62,250 L 35 639 ~_ 2,62_7~312 ~; ~247 L 381~45 
05 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 30,607 $ 0 0 (76)_ __ 1,42_1~538 .~ 605,263 _ 5,573,009 } 0~ .05 (76) L- 1,421,538 ~ 635 870 $ 5,5730,~09 
38,14,..~6~~~~ 62,2505 35,563 L4O~488,~o5o~ 1,181,117.$ 5,611,154 

(CONTINUED) 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Investments Inventory TOTALASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities: Accounts, salaries and other payables Interfund payable Deferred revenues Total Liabilities Fund Balances: Reserved for inventory Unreserved - undesignated (Deficit) Total fund balances (Deficit) 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Combining Balance Sheet Special Revenue Funds June 30, 1999 
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AIR CONDITIONER REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT GOALS 2000 
05 0 0 0 
59,653 $ 34,381 0 

Exhibit I 
TOTAL 
6,829,676 3,042,395 2,735,271 0 111,256 ~;_ O ~ 94 034 

5,344 $ 145 0 12,634 $ 77,011 4 389 1,263,133 3,705,274 122.339 
$ 5,489 }____ 94,034 .~L 5,093,746_ 
$ 0 $ 0 $ 30,607 .=__ (5,48~ O 7,594,245 
.~, (5,4~ }_ 0 $ 7,624,852 $ 0 ~; _ 94,034 ~; 12~718~598 (CONCLUDED 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

iiiiilliiiii~ !!!!i!ii!!!!i!!!~ii~iii!i!ii~ 
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REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Sales and use Interest earnings Food service Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources: Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special Programs Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Food services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
TITLE I 
05 0 0 0 

TITLE VI 
MATH AND SCIENCE - TITLE II 
05 0 O O 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
05 0 0 0 0 0 O O 0 O O O 2_ 456006_ 99j764 81 707 936,866 $ 2456 OO6 $ 997,~464L 81,707 $ 936,866 

204,063 $ 1,425.912 210,951 181,905 387,254 116 45,639 175 

05 95.052 O 58O 1,646 0 2,261 225 

1,890 $ 0 0 25,973 4,767 0 0 49,077 0 

21,110 554.193 46,803 250,957 20,256 4,557 21,137 17,853 0 
$ 24560065 99,764L__ 81,707 $ 936,866 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ O $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 



PRESCHOOL TITLE IV 
05 0 0 0 0 0 _ 98,255. 

REGION VII SERVICE CENTER 
05 0 0 0 0 0 138.596 

05 0 0 0 0 111,899 8.0OO 

SALES TAX 
18,669,817 $ 21,899 O 0 O 0 O 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
05 24,898 1,569,373 6.540 
806,004 0 2.897.328 

Exhibit 2 
BEEF FUND 
O 188,816 0 801,679 0 35,917 0 ~__ 98,255 } 138,596 $ 119,899 ;~. 18 69171,Z~6} 5,304,143_ $ 1,026,412 

05 28.422 11,315 56,100 2,418 0 0 0 

05 825 116,578 2,605 18,188 0 400 0 0 0 

2,185 $ 0 0 30,855 10,899 0 40,766 38,403 0 

05 0 0 0 78,432 0 0 2,303,375 0 

05 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,836,180 

167,955 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
}_~ 255~ 138,596 $ 123,108 ~_~8075 5,836,180 
__  0 ~ 0 $__ (3,209) L__1~16~90__9 $ (532,037~ $ 8584~5Z57 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Ba|ances (Deficit) Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 
TITLE I TITLE Vl 
$ 05 0 

MATH AND SCIENCE - TITLE II 
05 0 0 0 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
0 0 TOTAL O'[H[-R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 0 ~___ 0 ~$ 0 $ 0 

EXCESS(Deficiency)OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 05 0 O$ 0 O$ 0 O 0 
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 
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PRESCHOOL TITLEIV 
05 0 05 0 

REGION VI SERVICE CENTER SALES TAX 
05 05 0 (18,697,85~ 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE 
Exhibit 2 
BEEF FUND 

240,000 $ O 0 0 0 _$ O $ 0 ~___(!86~69797,85~ }__ 240 O00 $ O 
05 O 0 $ (3,209) $ (2,387,942) $ (292,037) $ 858,457 0 3,133 __ 38~O09,480 927.907 4.714.552 0 } 0~ L~1421,538 ~ 635,870. $ 5,573,009 
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REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Sales and use Interest earnings Food service Other State sources: Equalization Other Federal sources: Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Special Programs Supped services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Food services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
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AIR CONDITIONER REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT 
$ 

Exhibit 2 
GOALS 2000 TOTAL 
05 0 O 0 
0 0 0 

05 O 0 0 
O 0 173.117 

18,669,817 235,613 1,569,373 808,219 806,004 147,816 6.889.639 $ O ~__ 173,117L 29,126,481_ 
05 0 
O O 0 0 0 160 0 

72,912 $ 2.200 
0 720 1,937 O 95,348 O O 

470,115 2.106.604 
385,647 549,695 525,797 4,673 205,542 2,409,268 5.836.180 $ 160 L 173,117 L 12,493,521 

$ (~ 0 $ 16,632,960 (CONTINUED 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) Special Revenue Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 

AIR CONDITIONER REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT 
$ 0 0 

GOALS 2000 
Exhibit 2 
TOTAL 
0 $ 240,000 0 (18,697,851) 

$ 0 $ 0 L (18,457,85~ 
(160) $ 0 $ (1,824,891) FUND BALANCES (Deficit) A'r BEGINNING OF YEAR (5,32~ 0 9,449,743 FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 
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$ (5,48~. $ 0 $ 71624,852 (CONCLUDED) 



REVENUES Federal sources Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Current: Instruclion Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BUDGET 

Exhibit 3-1 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE~_ 
2,424,174 L 2,456,006 $ 31,832 L 2,424,174 L 2,456,006 L 31,832 
$ 1,598,253 $ 1,629,975 $ (31,722) 210,951 181,905 387,254 116 45.520 

219,951 I81,905 387,254 116 45.630 
0 0 0 0 (110) 175 175 0 ~__ 2,424,174 L~6,006 

05 0 05 0 o 0 



REVENUES Federal sources 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Instructional staff support General administration Business services Plant services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

Exhibit 3-2 

BUDGET ACTUAL 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 

~, __~64 $ 99,764 ~; 0 
~; 99 764 $ 99,764 ~ O 
95,632 $ O 1,430 2,477 225 

95,052 $ 580 1,646 2,261 225 
580 
(580) (216) 216 0 }_ 99,7_64 $ 99 7_,~4_64 ~; 0 

$ 05 O 05 0 
O 
0 



REVENUES Federal sources 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Instructional staff support General administration Plant services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCEATEND OFYEAR 
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Exhibit 3-3 

*********************** & SCIENCE-TITLE I1"************* 
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
~; 81,7707 ~ 81,707 $ 0 ~___ 81~Z07 ~ 81,707 ~ 0 
1,890 $ 1,890 $ 0 
27,336 4.763 25,973 4.767 1,363 (4) 47,7718 __ 49077 (1,359) ~__ 81,707 $ 81,707 $ 0 
05 O 05 O 0 0 



REVENUES Federal sources 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business services Plant services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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Exhibit 3-4 

IAL EDUCATION** 
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
~____ 933,878 $~ 936,866 $ 2,988 933,878~_ 936,866 ~__ 2,988_ 
$ 572,315 $ 575,303 $ 46,803 46,803 250,957 250,957 20,256 20,256 4,557 4,557 21,137 21,137 17,853 17,853 

(2,988) 0 0 0 0 0 0 }_~__ 933,878~9936~856L (2,988~ 
05 0 05 0 

0 
O $ o_~ o$ o 



REVENUES Federal sources 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration School administration Total expenditures 

DOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL DOARD Denton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET 
RESCHOOL 

Exhibit 3-5 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLEL 
~,___ 98,255 $ 98 255 $ 0 
98,255 $ 98 2~2~_55 $ 0 
28.422 $ 28,422 $ 11,315 56,100 2,418 O 

11,315 56,100 2.418 
98,255 $ 98,255 $ 0 
05 0 05 0 

0 
0 



REVENUES Federal sources 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Student services Instructional staff support General administration Business services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance o Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE A1 BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BUDGET 

Exhibit 3-6 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
L 138,596~ 138 596 $ 
}__ 138,596 $ 138,596 $ 
825 $ 825 $ 116,578 116,578 2,605 2,605 18,188 18,188 400 400 138 506L__ 138,596 $ 0 

$ 05 0 05 0 
0 
0 



VENUES ~te sources Jeral sources otall~venues ~ENDITURES rent: struction: Regular programs Jpport services: Instructional staff support General administration Busiaess services Plant services )tal expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

;ESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES JER EXPENDITURES ID BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
D BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

Exhibit 3-7 

REGION VII SERVICE CENTER**** 
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE~ 
$ 111,738 $ 111,899 $ 8 000 8 000 161 0 119,738 L 119,899 L 161 
2.t85 $ 2,185 $ 30,855 10,899 37,396 30,855 10,899 40.766 38,403 ~ 38~03 

0 0 0 (3,370) 0 119.738 ~; 123 108 ~p~__ (3,370) 
05 0 (3,209) $ (3,209) 3.133 3,133 

0 0 0 
0 0 
0 
0 
0 o 
o 



REVENUES Locat sources: Interest earnings Food service Other State sources Federal sources Total reventles EXPENDITURES Current: Food services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXP[-NDITURES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCEATEND OFYEAR 

6g 

Exhibit 3-9 

****** SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE ***** 
BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL IUNFAVORABLE)_ 
24,905 $ 1,569,373 6,540 806.004 _ 2,965,903 

24,898 1,569,373 6,540 806,004 2.897.328 
5,372,725_ ~_ 5,304,143 ~ (68,582J. 
~_ 5,836,180_~ 58~36,180 $ 0 ~._ 5,836,180__ ~; 5,836,180 ~ O 
(463,455_)_ ~___ (532,037) .$ (68,582) 

~$____ 240,000_ ~ 240,000 ~___  ~.. 240,000 .$~ 240,000 ~; 
$ (223,455) $ (292,037) $ _ 927,907 927 907 (68,582) 0 ~. 704,452._.$_~ 635 870 



REVENUES Local sources: interest earnings Other State sources: Other Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction: Regular programs Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPF.NDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCEATEND OFYEAR 
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BUDGET 

Exhibit 3-10 

BEEF FUND****** * 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

200,016 $ 837.596 188,816 $ 801.679 (11,200) (35,917) 0 35,917 35,917 
~~ 1,037,612 L 1~02026,412 $ (11,200) 
1594~_3_7}____ 167,9555 (8,518) ~_ 159,437~ 167,955 $ (8,518) 
878,175 $ 858,457 $ 4.714.552 4.714,552 (19,718) 0 5,592 727~ ~  



REVENUES Local sources: Investment income 
Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: Support services Plant services 
Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

Exhibit 3-11 
**AtR CONDITIONER REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT** 
BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
~__. 09 o 9 o o9 o9 o 
0 9 160_9 (160) 

~.__  O 9 160 $ 1~ 
0 $ (160) $ 0 (5,329) __ ~5,329) $, 0 L=...--.~.~. $ (5,489) 

The Air Conditioner Repair and Replacement Fund was included in the School Board's budget, however, the budget was -0-. 70 



REVENUES Federal sources Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Current: Instruction Support services: Instructional staff support General administration Business services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

*GOALS 2000*** 
BUDGET ACTUAL 

Exhibit 3-12 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE ~NFAVORABLE[ 
~___ 172778~$~ 173117~ 339 $__ 172,778 $ 173,117 $ 339 
74,875 $ 75,112 $ (237) 720 720 0 1,937 1,937 0 __.__~46_ ____~348 ~1~ ~. 172 778_ ~$~ 173 117 $ (339~ 

$ 05 05 O O O 0 }_ o..~ o.~ o 



ASSETS Cash Receivables Intertund receivables TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities: Interfund payables Total liabilities 
Fund Balances: Resemed for debt semice 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Combining Balance Sheet Debt Service Funds June 30, 1999 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

PUBLIC SCHOOLBOND RESERVE 
95t ,048 $ 0 229,695 

Exhibit 4 
UNIFIED TAX FUND TOTAL 
3,711,094 $ 12.031 4,662,142 12.031 0 229,695 

~; 0 ~; _ 59 990 ~; _ 59,990 ~;_ 0 ~$~_ 59,990 $ _~90 
L 1,180,743 ~L~_ 3,663,135 $ 4,843 878 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem Investment income State sources 
Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Support services: General administration Debt Service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges 
"total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton. Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Debt Service Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in 

PUBLIC SCHOOLBOND RESERVE 
05 36,828 

Exhibit 5 
UNIFIED TAX FUND TOTAL 
3,212,908 $ 150.391 0 170,043 3,212,906 187,219 170.043 ~___ 36,82_8 $ 3~53533,342 .~ 0,170 

0 $ 65,629 $ 65,629 O 1,880,000 0 __ 1~086,705 1,880,000 1.086.705 
O $ 3,032,334 $ 3,032,334 

~___ 36,8285 501,008 $ 537,836 
~_ 0__L___ 65,187 $ 65,187 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ~_ 0 $ __65,187 $ 65,187 

EXCESS(Deficiency)OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDtTURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCESATEND OFYEAR 

?4 

36.828 $ 566,195 $ 603,023 1,143,915 3,096,940 4,240,855 $ 1,180,743 $ ~~  



REVENUES Local sources: Investment income Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Debt service: Interest and bank charges Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Debt Service Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

?5 

Exhibit 6-1 
PUBLICSCHOOLBOND RESERVE VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

.$____ 36~8828 $ 36 8~228_ $ 0 .$____ 36,828 .$_____3_6,828 $ O 
o2 o~ o ~_ o$ o$ o 

$ 36,828 $ 36,828 $ ----- 1,143,915 1~143,915 
O 
0 ~.. 1 1807435 1,180,743 ~ 0 



REVENUES Localsources: Taxes: Ad valorem Investmentinaome State sources Total revenues EXPENDITURES Support services: General administration Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Debt Service Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in 

BUDGET 
Exhibit 6-2 

UNIFIEDTAXFUND * VARIANCE FAVORABLE ACTUAL 
$ 3,212,908 $ 144.911 

(UNFAVORABLE) 
3,212,908 $ 150.391 17~0043 ~043 

0 5,480 0 L3.,527,B62L_ 3,533,342 ~ 5480 
0 $ 65,629 $ 1,880,000 1,880,000 __1,~47~0~705 

(65,629) 0 442 
2~96~7147L 3 032 3345 (65,~ 
L__.560,715L 501 oo8 } 3~oT) 
~L 6518Z__ 65,~87 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) L____~0 k 65.187_ .$~ 65,187 

EXCESS(Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCES ATBEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

?6 

560,715 $ 566,195 $ ___ 3~gg6,g40 3 096 940 
5,480 
0 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivabtes Total assets 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities: Accounts, salaries and other payables Interfund payable Total liabilities 
Fund balances: Undesignated (deficit) 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Balance Sheet Capital Project Funds June 30, 1999 
ONE.HALF CENT SALES TAX AIR CONDITIONER 
$ 144,024 $ 19 

CAPITAL PROJECT RESERVE 

Exhibit 7 
UNIFIED CONSTRUCTION FUND TOTAL 
05 0 24,995 $ 162 169,019 181 $ 14~_4043 L.. oL 25,157 $169,200 

$ 0 __._561,304 $ 05 0 1,352,664 $ 444.887 1,352,664 1,006,191 551,304 $ O ~__ 1,797,551 .~  
$ (417,_261)_~ 0 .$~ (1,772,394) Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ ~ $ ~ $ 25 157 ~ 169~200 

?8 



REVENUES Local sources'. Investment income Other Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) Capital Project Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXPENDITURES Current: Support services: General administration Plant services Facilities acquisition and construction 
Total expenditures 

ONE-HALF CENT CAPITAL UNIFIED SALES TAX AIR PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONER RESERVE FUND 
$ 6,077 $ 05 33 202,348 $ 1.613 

Exhibit 8 

TOTAL 
208,425 1.646 .$_ 6 077 $ 33 $ = 203,961 $ 210,071 

05 553,824 0 0 $ 10,726 $ 10,726 0 0 553,824 0_ 12 959 669 __ 12,959,669 
~L 553 824 ~__  0_L12,970,3955 13,524,219 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (547,747) $ 33 $ (12,766,434) .L(13,314,148) OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out $ 4,000,000 $ (4,561,363) 05 0 0 $ 4,000,000 0 (4,561,363) Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (561,363). $ 0 $ 0 ~ (561,363) EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (1,109,110) $ 33 $ (12,766,434) $ (13,875,511) 
FUND BALANCE (Deficit) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 691 849 (33)_ 10,994,040 11 685 85=~6 FUND BALANCE (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR .L...=~4~ ~; 0..2= $ (1,772,394) 

?9 



REVENUES Local sources: Investment income Total revenues 
EXPENDITURFS Current: Support services Plant services Total expenditures 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) - Budget and Actual Capital Project Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 

Exhibit 9-1 
**ONE-HALFCENTSALESTAXAIRCONDITIONER*** VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE~ 
6~OZZ077 $ 6,077 ~ 0 60~77_~$ ~77 ~ 0 

~_ 5484~O80 $ 553,824 } 5~34~_ }___ 545,480_L~ 553,824 L (5,344) 
}____ (542,403)$ ~(@$ __ (5,344) 
$ 4,OO0,00O $ 4,000,000 $ _____ (4,561,363). __ (4,561,363) 0 0 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) L. (561~) $ (561,363) ~_ 0 EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES (Defi~t) AT END OF YEAR 
$ (1,103,766) $ (1,109,110) $ 691 ~ 691,849 

(5,344) 
0 



REVENUES Local sources: Investment income Other 
Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes n Fund Balances (Deficit)- Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) Capital Project Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 Exhibit 9-3 

EXPENDITURES Current: Support services: General administration Facilities acquisition and construction Total expenditures 
EXCESS (Deficierlcy) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 

82 

*****UNIFIED CONSTRUCTION FUND VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 
$ 202,348 $ 202,348 $ O 1,613 0 t ,613 
~ ____ 2202,348 $ 20393~61 ~L~ t,613 
$ 0 $ 10,726 $ (10,726) ____11943646 ~__~4,533 ~_ 
~___119~646 ~ 11945,259 .$~ 16,~ 
$ (11,741,298) $ (11,741,298) $ _ 10,944,041 10,994,040 0 49,999 



SCHOOL 
Adult Learning Center Airline High Apollo Elementary Bellaire Elementary Benton Elementary 
Benton Middle Benton High Bossier Alternative School Bossier Achievement Center Bossier Technical Center Bossier Elementary Bossier High Butler Elementary Central Park Elementary Cope Middle Curtis Elementary Elm Grove Middle Greenacfes Middle Haughton High Kerr Elementary Lite Skills Center Meadowview Elementary Parkway High Plain Dealing Elementary Plain Dealing Middle Plain Dealing High Planlation Park Elementary Platt Elementary Princeton Middle Redes Elementary 
Rusheon Middle Stockwell Elementary Sun City Elementary Waller Elementary Total 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS School Activity Agency Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Exhibit 10 

Balance, Balance, Beginning Additions Deductions Ending __ 
$ 

0 117,364 4,129 15,105 789 14,823 69,246 2,399 20,041 48.693 23,707 75,246 42,395 122,226 28.104 1,114 54,010 106,276 15,460 0 18,182 14,495 12,590 83,115 38,978 
37,415 14,287 12,613 __ 12,050 

9,624 $ 484,542 125,351 88,438 151,950 
161A21 412,302 15,458 36,469 8.691 59,698 387,935 24,378 62,806 140.051 79,848 211,719 206,712 591,967 70,545 1,912 65,867 451,786 48,848 24,147 91,457 75,972 121,833 182,603 112,334 
155,954 85,824 88,096 73.671 

9,226 481,729 122,180 62,406 126,354 
103~51 419,255 9,290 38,039 7.731 43,813 379,015 21,276 67,767 155,487 79,317 203,020 196,150 580,905 53,553 2,375 59,453 495,320 40,444 17,194 88,357 63,986 107,335 164,971 99,066 157,3o9 82,754 90,944 

633 132,332 37,429 71,487 47,491 
57,570 110,411 10,297 13,535 1,749 30,708 78,166 5,501 15,080 33,257 24,238 83,945 52,957 133,288 45,096 651 60,424 62,742 23,864 6,953 23,282 26,481 27,088 10o,747 52,246 
36,060 17,357 9,765 12,623 

84 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 

Tile general fixed asset account group records tile fixed assets of the School Board which are used in govcramenta fund-type operations. 



GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: Land Buildings and improvements Furniture and equipment Transportation equipment Construction in progress 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCE June 30. t999 

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
NVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS Investment prior to June 30, 1980 Investment subsequent to June 30, 1980 Capital Projects Funds General Funds School Food Service Fund Federal aid State aid Gifts and donations TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

416,428 95,734,807 20,506,408 8,495,613 16,450,201 

66,154.106 47,903,406 21,976,585 394,219 2,588,459 2,090,578 496.104 

Exhibit 11 



FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY Instructional 
High schools Middle schools Elementary schools Community college Total Instructiona 
SUDDOrtino services 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

General and school administration Plant and maintenance Food Service equipment Transportation equipment Total Supporting Services 

BALANCE 
Exhibit 12 
BALANCE JULY 1, 1998 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30, 1999 

$ 39,244,921 $ 675,206 $ 26.090.378 12.356.733 
34.509.473 _ 7,128,020 796,447 0 

15,631 $ 42,015 
12,546 0 

39.904.496 38.405.096 
35.293.374 7.128.020 106,972,792 ~ 13,828,386 L70,192 $ 120,730,986 

4,648,607 $ 1,096,397 $ 4,938,863 1,568 1.526.331 124,943 
2,290 $ 0 0 

5.742.714 4.940.431 
1,651,274 8,495,613 42,439 0 8,538,052 $ 19,609,414 } 1,265,347 L 2,290 ~ 20,872,471 TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 126,5828.~.~206 ~ 33 L=... 72482 $ 141,603,457 
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FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
!nstructional High schools Middle schools 
Elementary schools Community college 1 otal instructional 
Supporting services General and school administration 
Plant and maintenance Food Service equipment Transportation equipment 
Total supporting services 1OTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Benton, Louisiana SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY June 30. 1999 
BUILDINGS AND FURNITURE AND LAND IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT 

$ 99,129 $ 33,594,470 $ 6,014,615 183.164 22.311.758 2.102.603 
100.100 31.344.676 3.846.627 10.000 7.118.020 0 

L 392,393 L94,368,924 $ 11,963,845 
17,035 $ 7,000 
0 0 

1,099,065 $ 266.818 
0 0 

2,351,187 4,665,045 
1.526.331 0 

~___ 24,035 $ 1,365,883 $ 8,542,563 



TRANSPORTATION CONSTRUCTION IN EQUIPMENT PROGRESS 

Exhibit 13 

TOTAL 
O $ 1,095,239 $ 14.173.642 40,803,453 38,771,167 35,291,403 

7.128.020 0 ~L~ 15,268,881 ~ 121,994,043 
0 $ 0 0 

8.495.613 

1,181,320 $ 4,648,607 0 4.938.863 0 1.526.331 
0 8,4_95,613 8,495,61_3 L_ 1,181,320 $ 19,609,414 8r495~613 ~  $ 141r6031457 

89 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
GENERAL 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
Exhibit 14 

The schedule of compensation paid to the School Board members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 ofthe 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School Board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the general fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $500 per month, and the president receives $600 per month for performing the duties of his office. 
Board Member Elizabeth S. Cassibry, President Julian Darby, Vice-President llenry L. Bums Gary Dowden George C. Finck Michael M. Graham David Harvey Marguerite Hudson Juanila Jackson Mack Knurls Mike Knotts Eldou W. Pentecost Mary Margaret Ray Vassie M. Richardson Gloria Simison J. W. Slack Kenneth M. Wiggins 
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Amuunl~ $6,600 6,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 6,000 3,600 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 6,000 6,000 3,000 6,000 6,000 $73,20__0 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Compliance with Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Other Information For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

RECF VEO t E:GIS .iZl'/E/,U,~ffOR 2DDOJAN I I t~N 9; l~l, 



REPORTS REQUIRED BY 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Compliance with Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Other Information For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) CIRCULAR NO AND BY A-133 Report on Compliance and on htternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance Witll Government Auditine Standards Report oll Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and oll Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular No. A-133 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Notes to tile Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs OTI IER INFORMATION Smnmary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs Management Letter Items Management Letter 
Status of lMor Management Letter Items 
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The CPA, N~r Und.m'esti~ The Va81~~ 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O. Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Ferrand Street Monroe, LA 71201 Telephone: (318) 388-4422 Facsimile: (318) 388-4664 Web site: www.allengreencpa.com 

2285 Benton Road G.O.P. Building III, Suite 400 Bossier City, LA 71111 Telephone: (318) 741-0205 Facsimile: (318)741-0207 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

Ernest L. A/ten, CPA A Professional Accoun in9 Corp. Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

We have audited tile financial statements of Bossier Parish School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and tile standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by tile Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's finaucial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, nonconlpliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Audit ng Standarcls_ Mana,~ement Letter llems We also noted certain innnaterial instances of noncompliance which we have reported to management of the Schoo Board in a separate letter dated November 18, 1999, included later in this report. ernal Control Over Financial Renortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on tile internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the School Board's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 99-F1. 

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Finns Equal Opportttnity Employer 



Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does no't reduce "to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in tile normal course of performing their assigned fanctions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in tile internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses, ltowever, we believe that the reportable condition referenced above is not a material weakness. Management Letter lten We also noted other matters involving tile internal control over financial reporting which we have reported to managemenl of the School Board in a separate letter dated November 18, 1999, included later in Ibis reporl. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Monroe, Louisiana November 18, 1999 

7 ~ /../(9 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 



 

"I~8 CPA, Never Un~r~tim=l~ The vAa~~ 

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTtFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O, Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Ferrand Street ~285 Benton Road Monroe, LA 71201 G.O.P. Building III, Suite 400 Telephone: (318) 388-4422 Bossier City, LA 71 t 11 Facsimile: (311~)330-4634 Telephone: (318)741-0205 Website: www.allengreencpa.com Facsimile: (318)741-0207 
Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular No. A-133 Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA (A Professional AcCOunlin9 Corp ) Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamsen, CPA 

Compliance We have audited the compliance of the Bossier Parish School Board, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget tOMB) Circular No. A- 133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Cmnpliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its lnajor federal programs is the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based Oll our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with geueraUy accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular No. A- 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organiza- tions. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether no~lcompliauce with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstauces. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the School Board's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable lo eadl of its major federal programs for lbe year ended Jnne 30, 1999. However, tbe results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular No. A- 133 and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 99-F2 and 99-F3. eroal Control Over Comnliance The managelnent of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over colnpliance in accordance with OMB Circular No. A-133. 
Member; American ]nsdtute of Cedified Public Account anls, Society of Louisiana Ccrlified Public Accountants and Anledean h~stilute of Certified Public AcCOuntants Division for EPA Finns Equal Opportunity Employer 



Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton. Louisiana 
We noted a certain matter involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the School Board's ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. This reportable condition is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 99-F4. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur, and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the inlernal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness. Schedule of Exnenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 1999. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through enlities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Monroe, Louisiana November 18. 1999 
I C~dj,~,y" e-i_/~ 

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30,1999 FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME CFDA Pass-Through Number Grantor No. E F~pendilures CASH FEDERAL AWARDS United States Department of Agriculture Passed Through Louisiana Deparlment of Education: School Breakfast Program National School Lunch Program Passed Tl~rough Louisiana Department of Treasury: Schools and Roads - Grants to States (National Forest Lands) Total United States Department of Agriculture United States I)epartment of Education Direct Programs: hnpact Aid (Title VIII) Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education Adult Education - State Grant Program Title I Grams to Local Educational Agencies 
Special Education: Grants to States (Part B) Preschool Grants 

10.553 008-SL-9906 10.555 008-SL-9906 
10.665 Not available 

$ 538,710 2,043,165 
70,401 . 2,652,276 

84.041 Not applicable 432,294 84.002 99-ABSP-08-F 84.010 98-IASA-08 99-IASA-08 84.027 84.173 Grams for Infants and Families with Disabilities (Part C) 84.181 Vocational Fxtucation: Basic Grants to States Tech-Prep Education School-to-Work hmovative Education Program Strategies - Title V1 Title 1I (Eisenhower Professional Development) Title IV (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) 

84.048 84.243 84.UKN 84.298 84.281 84.186 

98-F1"-08 99-FT-08 98-PF-08 99-PF-08 98-IH-08-S-C/O99 28-99-08-2B/BG 28-99-08-03PE Not available 98qASA-08 99-IASA-08 98-IASA-08 99-IASA-08 98-1ASA-08 99-IASA-08 Passed Through the Office of the Louisiana Lieutenant Governor: Learn for Ibe 21st Century (Goals 2000 State Grants 84.276 Not available Total United States Department of Education 

137,848 2,459.006 
931,866 98,255 5,000 40,540 87,009 33,943 99.764 81,707 143,596 
. 197,2L4 4,948,042 (Continued) 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME CFDA Pass-Through Number Grantor No. _Expenditures CAS]t FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued) Uuiled States Deparlment of Health and Human Services Passed Through tile Louisiana Department of Education Child Care and Development Block Grant (Starting Points Preschool) Title XIX EPSDT Kidmed School Nurse EPSDT Title Kidmed Social Worker Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 
93.575 99-FT-008-2 $ 61,565 13.714 1415103 13.714 1415103 93.778 1701173 Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 

113,923 18,591 110,156 304,235 United Stales Department of Labor Passed Through the Coordinating and Development Corporation: Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) 17.250 Not available 6,317 United States Department of Defense Direct Programs: Department of The Army Flood Control Projects ROTC Troops to Teachers Total United Stales Department of Defense Total Cash Federal Awards 
12.106 Not applicable 1,020 12.UKN Not applicable 278,552 12.UKN Not applicable 4,107 

NONCASII FEDERAL AWARDS United States Department of Agriculture Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry: Food Distribution (Commodities) 10.550 Not available TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 

283,679 8,194,549 
315,453 $8,510,002 (Concluded) 



NOTE1-GENERAL 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all tederal awards programs of the Bossier Parish School Board (the "School Board"), Benton, Louisiana. The School Board reporting entity is defined in note I of the Notes to the General-Puq~ose Financial Statements of the School Board's general-purpose financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies, is included on the schedule. NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING Tile accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in note I of the Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statements of the School Board's general-purpose financial statements. 
NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Federal awards revenues are reported in the School Board's general-purpose financial statements as follows 
General fund Special revenue funds: Title I Title V1 Math and science - Title 11 Special education fund Preschool Title IV Region VII service center School food service Goals 2000 Total NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Federal Sources $1,620,363 
2,456,006 99,764 81,707 936,866 98,255 138,596 8,000 2,897,328 173,11.7 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financia reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
NOTE 5 - MATCHING REVENUES For those funds thai have matching revenues and state funding, federal expenditures were determined by deducting matching revenues from total expenditures. NOTE 6 - NONCASH PROGRAMS Tt~e commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United States Dcpartmcnl of Agriculture. NOTE7-EPALOANS 
The balance outstanding at June 30, 1999, of the loan received in a previous fiscal year under former CFDA #66.702 for asbestos removal was $652,610. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Casts For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 PART I- Summary of ti~e Audiiars' Results Financial Statement And The type of audit report issued was unqualified There was a reportable condition required 1o be disclosed by Goverument Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. There were no instances of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the Government Auditing Standards, to the financial statements. Audit of Federal Awards v. There was a reportable condition required to be disclosed by OMB Circular No. A- 133 The reportable candilion disclosed was nat considered a material weakness as defined by OMB Circular No. A-133. v. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs was unqualified. vi. The audit disclosed audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB Circular Na. A- 133, Section .510(a). vii. The major federal programs are CFDA #84.010 CFDA #84.186 CFDA #84.002 CFDA #84.048 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies Title IV (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) Adult Education - State Grant Program Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States Clusters (as defined by OMB Circular No. A-133 Provisional Compliance Supplement) Nutrition Cluster CFDA #10.553 CFDA #10.555 School Breakfast Program National School Lunch Program Special Education Cluster CFDA #84.027 Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) CFDA #84.173 Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA, Preschool) viii. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as described in OMB Circular No, A-133, Section .520(b) was $300,000. ix. The audilee does not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular No, A- 133, Section .530 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30,1999 PART II - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards: Reference # and title: Entity-wide or aroeram/deoarlment suecific: This comment applies entity-wide Criteria or specific requirement: Louisiana Revised Statute 24:515 requires that Louisiana governments "shall maintain records of all land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, and any other general fixed assets which were purchased or otherwise acquired, and for which such entity is accountable." 
Good inlenml controls should be developed to assist in meeting this requirement. One such control is to maintain a comprehensive listing of fixed assets. Condition found: Although the School Board has maintained records of the additions and deletions each year, the comprehensive listing has not been updated since 1996. Proper perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences: Fixed assets reported in the financials of the School Board total $141,603,457. 
ossible asserted effect (cause and effect): Cause: The personnel responsible for updating the listing changed computer hardware in 1996. When lhe hardware was changed, the software used to maintain the comprehensive listing was not installed on the new hardware, As a result, the comprehensive listing has not been updated since 1996, Effect: Controls are weakened over accountability and physical security of the assets 
centralized, comprehensive listing of fixed assets 

10 

: The School Board should develop and maintain a 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For tile Year Ended June 30, 1999 Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 5]0(a): Reference # and title: 99-F2 Cash Management Federal uroeram and snecific federal award identification: CFDA Pass-Through Federal Number Grantor No. Award Year United States Department of Education Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: Adult Education - State Grant Programs 84.002 99-ABSP-08-F 1999 ntitv-wide or uroeram/denartment snecifie: This applies only to the Adult Education Program Criteria or specific requirement: EDGAR, Subpart C, Section 80.21 and Louisiana Department of Education Guidelines for State and Federal Flow-Through Funds give guidance on payments made under federal grants. In summary, the School Board is on a reimbursement basis. This would require that cost be paid before the cost is requested for reimbursement. 
Condition fmlnd: Three instances where the request for reimbursement preceded the payment of tbe charge were noted in a random test. Each payment made was considered an allowable cost. Propel" perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences: Three requests for reimbursement were selected. Three items from each request were chosen as the sample. dentifieation of ouestioned costs and how they were comnuted: The three instances noted were 14.22% of the total cost included in the sample, The total amount of federal requests were $137,848. Therefore, a total of $19,602 is considered questioned cost because they were requested before payment was made, 
Cause: School Board personnel making the request were trying to minimize the time between payment and receipt. The personnel also believed that requests could be made from an invoice since the invoice represents receipt of the goods and a commitment to pay the vendor. Therefore, some requests were made from invoices and then paid at a later date. Effect: The School Board has violated the provisions of EDGAR, Subpart C, Section 80.2 ] and Louisiana Department of Education Guidelines for State and Federal Flow-Througb Funds concerning reimbursement. Recommendation to prevent future occurrences: Personnel responsible for making requests on cost reimbursement basis programs should be aware that no requests can be made until payment of the cost bas been made. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30,1999 Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 510(a): Reference # arrd title: 99-F3 Federal nro~ram and succific federal award identification: 
Program Name CFDA Pass-Through Federal Number Grantor No. Award Year United States Department of Education Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: Adult Education - State Grant Programs 84.002 99-ABSP-08-F 1999 -wide or program/department specific: This comment applies only to the Adult Education Program. Criteria or specific requirement: EDGAR, Subpart D, Section 80.50 requires that the project completion report (SI)EB-4) be completed within 90 days of the ending effective date of the program. Condition found: The project completion report for the program ending June 30, 1999 was not filed as of November 18. 1999. Propel" perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences: The amount of federal expenditures recorded on the School Board's books for the program totaled $137,848. Possible asserted effect (cause and effee Cause: The School Board personnel in charge of filing the completion report was instructed by the Louisiana Department of Education (LDOE) to file the project completion report on new forms. Since the School Board did not have the forms, the LDOE was to mail the forms to the School Board. The forms were not received and the report was never completed. Effect: The School Board is in violation of EDGAR provisions concerning project completion reports. Recommendation to prevent future occurrences: Tire accountants and supervisors responsible for the program should be familiar with all regulations on the program. The regulations should be followed at all times. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

PART 111 - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 510(a): Reference # and title 99-F4 Federal nrnf, ram and snecifie federal award identification 
Pl~3granl Name Adnlt Education - State Grant Program Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies Grants to Slales (Part B) Preschool Grants Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities (Part C) Basic Grants to States Tech-Prcp Education School-to-Work Innovative Education Program Strategies - Title VI 

CFDA Pass-Through Federal ?,/umber Grantor No. Award Year 84.002 84.010 84.027 84.173 84.181 84.048 84.243 84.UKN 84.298 Title II (Eisenhower Professional Development) 84.281 Title IV (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) 84.186 Learn for the 21 st Century (Goals 2000 State Grants) Child Care and Development Block Grant (Starting Points Preschool) EPSDT Kidmed School Nurse EPSDT Title Kidmed Social Worker Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) 
84.276 93.575 13.714 13.714 93.778 17.250 

99-ABSP-08-F 98-1ASA-08 99-1ASA-08 98-FT-08, 99-FT-08 98-PF-08, 99-PF-08 98-1tt-08-S-C/O99 28-99-08-2B/BG 28-99-08-03PE Not available 98-IASA-08 99-1ASA-08 98-IASA-08 99-1ASA-08 98-1ASA-08 99-IASA-08 Not available 99-FT-008-2 1415103 1415103 1701173 Notavailable 

1999 1998.1999 1998, 1998, 1999 1999 1998 1999 1999 1999 1998.1999 1998,1999 1998,1999 
1998.1999 1999 1999 1999 1999 1999 Criteria or specific requirement: Good internal control over the reporting process for cost reimbursement programs requires timely reconciliations of all project completion reports to the general ledger. Condition found: The School Board has made improvements in the number of federal project completion reports which are being reconciled to the general ledger. However, the reconciliations lo the general ledger continue 1o be performed in an untimely mariner. Prooer I~ersDcctive for iudl~inl~ the nrevalenee and conseoucnees: The School Board has 17 federa programs on a cost reimbursement basis. Total awards under these programs are $4,826,300 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30,1999 PART I!! - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 510(a): Reference # and title: 99-F4 a (Continued) 
Cause: Recently, the Louisiana Department of Education (LDOE) implemented changes in the reporting requirements in the cost reimbursement programs for which the LDOE serves as the pass-through entily. The School Board's deadline for liquidating purchase orders at June 30 each year has been reduced from twelve months to ninety days. However, the School Board's cut-off date for letting and liquidating purchase orders has not been changed. Therefore, the federal program accountant does not have sufficient time to request and properly reconcile the general ledger to the requests and completion report. Effect: This situation may cause filing of incorrect reports and possible loss of funds from non-request Recommendation to nrevent future occurrences: Tile School Board should establish cut-off dates for issuing purchase orders for federal programs. A cut-off should also be established for tile receipt and payment of invoices. These cut-off dates should allow ample time for the federal program accountant to request the funds and properly reconcile the general ledger to requests and the completion report. All completion rcports should be reconciled within the ninety days given by the LDOE to make a request. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

Other Information 
The informalion in the following section concerns management's actions or intentions concerning prior- and current year audit findings and is required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A- 133. This information has been prepared by the management of the Bossier Parish School Board. Management accepts full responsibility, as required by OMB Circular No. A-133, for the accuracy of the information. This information has not been audited by the auditors except as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 500(e), and accordingly, no opinion is expressed. Section 500(e) requires the auditor to follow-up on prior audit findings, perform procedures to assess the reasonableness of the summary schedule of prior audit findings prepared by the auditee, and report, as a current-year audit finding when the auditor concludes that the Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings materially misrepresents the status of any prior audit finding. 



Reference # and Title 
Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Smnmary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings June 30, 1999 98-1 Collateralization of Bank Denosits Initially occurred: Fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 Condition: At June 30, 1998, the School Board had $713,661 on deposit with one of the nine banks utilized by the School Board. Collateral pledged by the bank as of June 30, 1998, totaled $612,425. This left $101,236 of the School Board's deposits with the bank unco[lateralized. Corrective action taken: The financial institutions with whom we do business monitor our balances and pledge securities to cover those balances without contacting us. We are contacted only when they wish to have a pledged security released. During the year we periodically reviewed the list of securities pledged by the various banks arid compared the market value of those securities to the balances on deposit. If we had found any amounts nncollatcralized, although we did not, we would have contacted the bank to have additional securities pledged. 

Reference # and Title: 98-2 Unfavorable Variances In Excess of 5~/ Initially occnrred: Fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 Condition: The following funds final amended budget contained material unfavorable variances which exceeded 5%: 
Revenues and other sources: Capital project funds: Capital project reserve Expenditures and other uses: Special revenue funds: Region VII service center Air conditioner repair and replacement Capital project funds: One-half cent sales tax air conditioner 

B~ Actual Variance 
$ 662,500 $ 347,343 $315,157 
56,007 116,450 111,865 !61,168 55,858 44,718 3,961,363 4,845,516 884,153 Corrective action taken: The Board requested and were provided with monthly budget updates during the year, This ensured that budget variances were quickly recognized and allowances made. Also, an amended budget was adopted once the year-end adjustments were made. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings June 30, 1999 Reference # and Title: 98-3 Initially occurred: Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 Condition: Project completion reports are not being reconciled to the general ledger for all programs. Those programs which are reconciled to the general ledger are not being performed in a timely manner. Partial corrective action taken: A retired employee of the accounting department was rehired on a part-time basis. One of his responsibilities is to reconcile completion reports on federal programs. Although he may have been hired too late to have the desired effect on this year's programs, he will be in place for next year. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs As of and for the Year Ended June 30,1999 Reference # and title: 99-F1 Fixed Asset Listing Condition: Although the Sctlool Board has maintained records of the additions and deletions for each year the comprehensive listing has not been updated each year. Corrective action planned: We are aware of the need to maintain a comprehensive listing of assets. The major reason that we do not now have a comprehensive list involves problems with the PC-based system that was in place until 1996. Since 1996, we have had to keep track of additions and deletions on a year-by-year basis using Lotus. We have a fixed asset application on our main-frame computer, however, some modifications Io it will have to be made by our programmers. Once there modifications are made, the data from the two PC-based systems could be loaded onto it. Person responsible for corrective action Mr. Frank Rougeau Director - Finance, Business Affairs Bossier Parish School Board P. O. Box 2000 Benton. LA 71006-2000 Anticiuated eomuletion date 
Reference tt and title: 

By June 30, 2000 
Telephone (318) 549-5000 Fax (318) 549-5044 

Condition: Three instances where the request for reimbursement preceded the payment of tire charge were noted in a random test. Corrective action planned: The person responsible for preparing the reimbursement request for Adult Education will be made aware of the requirement that the request for reimbursement may not precede the payment. Io addition, the accounting department will test invoices listed on requests 1o determine if they have been paid. 
Person responsible for corrective action: Mr. Frank Rougeau Director - Finance, Business Affairs Bossier Parish School Board P. O. Box 2000 Benton, LA 71006-2000 Anticinated comnletion date: By June 30, 2000 

Telephone (318) 549-5000 Fax (318) 549-5044 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs As of and for the Year Ended June 30,1999 Reference # and title: 99-F3 .Condition: The project completion report for the program ending June 30, 1999 was not filed as of November 18, 1999. Corrective action planned: The project completion report for the Adult Education Program was not filed because the packet of forms provided to the Director of Adult Education did not contain the correct forms for the completion report and he was told to wait for the correct forms, which never arrived. The Director of Adult Education has been instructed to prepare all reports in a timely manner. If he does not have the proper forms he is to request them. Any request or promise of forms is to be followed up if not received in a reasonable time. If the deadline is nearing and he still does not have the proper forurs, he is to prepare the report on the forms he has. Person responsible for corrective action Mr. Frank Rougeau Director - Finance, Business Affairs Bossier Parish School Board P. O. Box 2000 Benton. LA 71006-2000 
Anticinated comoletlon date 
Reference # and title 99-F4 

By June 30, 2000 
Telephone (318) 549-5000 Fax (318) 549-5044 

Condition: The School Board has made improvements in the number of federal project completion reports which are being reconciled to the general ledger. However, the reconciliations to the general ledger continue to be performed in an untimely manner. Corrective action planned: A retired employee of the accounting department was rehired on a part-time basis. One of his responsibilities is to reconcile completion reports on federal programs. Although he may have been hired too late to have the desired effect on this year's programs, he will be in place for next year. Person responsible for corrective action: Mr. Frank Rougeau Director - Finance, Business Affairs Bossier Parish School Board P. O. Box 2000 Benton, LA 71006-2000 
Anticinated comnletion date By June 30, 2000 

Telephone (318) 549-5000 Fax (318) 549-5044 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

Management Letter Items 



 

Th6 CPA, N~er Ur~res~ The Valoe~ 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O, Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2"114 Ferrand Street Monroe, LA 71201 Telephone: (318) 388-4422 Facsimile: (318) 388-4664 Web site: www,allengreencpa corn 

Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

2285 Benion Road G.O.P. Building fll, Suite 400 Bossier City, LA 71111 Telephone: (31e) 741~0205 Facsimile: (318)741-0207 
Management Letter 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A ProfessiOnal AccOun ng Corp.) Tim Green, CPA Margie Williamson, CPA 

In plamling and performing our audit of tile ge~leral-purpose financial statements of the Bossier Parish School Board, for tile year ended June 30, 1999, we considered the School Board's internal control to plan our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on file financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. 110wever, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated November 18, 1999, on the financial statements of the School Board. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. Out" comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in inaplementing the recommendations. Our comments are smnmarized as follows: 99-M1 Fund Balances/Equity of the Operational Funds Comment: Last year's management letter item 98-M l addressed concerns about tile finaucial condition of funds available for general operations of the School Board. The fund balances had dropped significantly since June 30, 1997. The recommendation made in item 98-M1 was to examine the causes behind the drop in fund balance and to take steps |o ensure a similar drop did not oceur this year. 11owever, in this year the fund balance continued to drop significantly. The chart below depiets the combined condition of seven funds. These seven funds include the general fund, sales tax fund, air conditioner repair and replacement fund, one-half cent sales tax air conditioner fund, capital project reserve fund, unified construction funds, and the group health insurance fund. These funds could be considered the operating funds of/he School Board. 
Jnue 30~ 1997 ] 998 1999 

Fund balance/Equity $ 17,038,471 14,092,519 (6,200,217) 
Total Combined Expenditures/ Exnense offunds $ 93,201,884 109,917,184 123,234,228 

Fund Balance/Equity as a % of the total combined Expenditures/Expenses 18.28 12.82 (5.03) Tile cootinuing decline of the funds poses a serious concern for the School Board. This trend must be reversed immediately. 
Me be Ameri~an~nsitute~fCe~i~edP~b~icAe~un~an~s~S~ciety~fL~u~s~anaCet1~edPub~i~A~e~untantsand American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Finns Equal Opporlunily Employer 



Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
RecommendationS_: The School Board should give immediate attention to defining the reasons behind the deterioration of feud balance/equity in these funds. After ideulifying the causes, the School Board should take steps to reduce expenditures or increase revenues so that the trend is reversed. 

We realized that we were spending a great deal of money over the past two years, however, these expenditures were for non-recurring items which needed to be addressed. We do not anticipate these expenditures recurring over the next several years. This should give us adequate time to rebuild our fund balances. 99-M2 Accountin~ for Vacation Leave Comment: As discussed in the last two years' management letters, accounting for vacation leave is very decentralized. Vacation leave is handled by approximately four different individuals using a manual system. Accounting for vacation leave is not performed on the School Board's computer system and, as a result, the compuler syslem generates no printouts for accrual purposes. Praclically all other compensation-related aecouuling is computerized and performed by the payroll department personnel. The payroll department does account for tile number of days taken in the current year but does not account for the accrued balances of vacation days available to be taken or the dollar amounts of these liabilities. Recommendations: The School Board should centralize this accounting under the payroll department for the following reasons: 
1. An iusignifieant burden would be placed on the payroll department 2. Accounting for vacation leave is very similar to the accounting for sick leave which is already performed in payroll. 3. Adapting later changes to tile sick leave programs would be streamlined 4. Interual control over the process would be strengthened greatly Last year we planued in centralize the aeeounting for vacation leave iJi tile payro department. However, payroll personnel were not able to take time away from their ordinary duties to set up the vacation accouuting syslem We will again endeavor to move the vaeafioll leave accounting to the payroll department 99-M3 Self-Insured Groul~ Hosnitalization Plan Comment: In fl~e prior year's management letter, the large deficit balance in the Group Healfll Insurance Fuud was discussed. Managemeut's response to the eomment was that a reeommendation would be made to amortize the debt over two to three years and to establish and Jnaintain a reserve fund after the deficit is elimiuated. However, the fund continues to carry forward a large deficit balance in the retaiued earnings account of $2,508,515. The deficit is composed of the $2,343,830 deficit at June 30, 1998 plus an additional net loss of$164,685 in the currentyear. No transfers were made to assist in reducing tbe defieit as called for in the amortization plan. 



Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton. Louisiana 
Recommendations: This deficit should be eliminated as quickly as possible. Considering the declining balances discussed in item 99-M 1, reducing this deficit in the next two to three years poses a challenge. When the deficit is eliminated the School Board should consider setting up a reserve in the group health fund to cover possible spikes in claims. : As long as the School Board has been self-insured for hospitalization it has followed the practice of funding the plan on a cash basis. Incurred But Not Reported Claims are recognized when the plan is put on the accrual basis. A large portion of the deficit fund balance, approximately $1.8 million, can be accounted for by the year-end accrual for Incurred But Not Reported Claims. The remaining deficit is made up of accounts payable to Blue Cross for claims incurred prior to June 30, 1999. We recognize the desirability of funding the deficit and made a commitment last year to amortize it over three years. ttowever, due to the other expenditures we made, we were not able to begin the amortization. We therefore renew our commitment to amortize the deficit over the next five years. 99-M4 nacl ofGASB Staiement No. 34 Comment: The Goverumenlal Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which determines the standards of financial rcporling for governmental entilies, recently released Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Govermnents. GASB's new reporting model will be mandatory for the School Board for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. Early implementation is allowed. 
This new reporting model will dramatically change several aspects of the financial reporting for the School Board. Three major changes are a part of this new model. First, the new reporting model will include the current set of financial statements with modifications and will add a new set of financial statements. The new set will be on the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, the same as exist today in the commercial environment. Allen, Green & Company believes, at this early stage, that the prudcut approach is for the School Board to continue its current budget or modified accrual methodology for its books. Side adjustments will be made at year-end to convert the financial slatements to the full accrual accounting method. The single change that will probably pose the most challenge to the School Board may be accounting for general capital assets. Under the new reporting model, general capital assets will be accounted for in virtually tbe same manner as commercial entities. Assets will be capitalized, depreciated, and shown consolidated on lhe new Stalement of Net Assets with the funds, rather than displayed separately in the fixed assets account group. The changes required by GASB Statemeut No. 34 will obviously require the School Board to place a greater emphasis on accounting for fixed assets than is required by the current model. Another addition to the annual financial report will be the Mauagement's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This document, which will be several pages in length, will be a narrative explanation of the major financial events/changes during the fiscal year, what caused the events/changes, and project what file events/changes' effects will be on fulure years. It will also give the reader insighl on mauagemenfs decisions uuderlining the budget. 
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Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louislaoo 
Recommendation: Several important issues need to be addressed before setting up the new reporting model Since the fixed assets will require depreciation, the listing will need to be current and comprehensive. We encourage tile current listing be evaluated to decide if efforts are necessary to bring it up to date, both in content and accuracy. An evaluation of the fixed asset software will be necessary to decide if the system can provide a comprehensive listing in a usable format for depreciating assets. The software system should have fields for useful lives, salvage value, depreciation methods and fund assignments. The system should be capable of calculating depreciation and printing reports for assets' depreciation and accumulated depreciation by asset, by fund for each year. Tile system must also be able to roll-forward information each year. 

The School Board should evaluate the need for possible changes to the curreut basis of accounting and should be cognizant that the new reporting model will provide the reader with more information than is currently being provided. 
Managemenl's response: Tile School Board is aware of GASB Statement No It is prepared to make all necessary changes at the appropriate time. 99-M5 lnterna| Controlsin Payro 

34 and tile new reporting model 
Comment: Historically, tile payroll function of the School Board has lacked appropriate segregation ofdu0es. This lack of segregation of duties weakened the internal control in place. Steps were taken during the 1998 fiscal year wJ~icb helped to strengthen tbe internal control by having the printing and signing of payroll checks moved to the evahmtion center. However, there is still one improvement which could be made that would furtber strengthen the cot/trol. 
Currently, autborization to establisb an employee or change a rate of pay is given by the Personnel Department. This authorization is sent to Payroll, where the information is entered. However, there is no means for the Personnel Department, or any other department independent oftbe keypunch function, to review changes made. Recommendation: The School Board should consider having a report developed which prints out any changes made to relevant fields of an employee's records. Personnel should review the changes to assure these changes are authorized. Management's response: We will bave tile data processing department develop a report which could be matched to status sheets to verify that changes have been made properly. 
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Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
99-M6 eht Service Fund Balance Comment: Tax millages for debt service should be levied at a rate to provide adequate funds for debt service rc,quirements. When millages are levied at a rate higher than necessary, fund balances build up. Since these funds arc" dedicated for debt service, the fund balances could not be used for other purposes. At June 30, 1999, the fund balance of the debt service fund was approximately 230% of the next year's debt service requirements. Recommendation: The Director of Finance should consider the current fund balance and the next year's debt service requirements when setting tax millages each year. The millages should be adjusted to avoid having too high of a fired balance. Mauaffelneutls resDollse 99-M7 The tax millages were signific,antly reduced in ! 999 nternal Controls over Veudor Disbursements Comment: In reviewing the inlc,rual controls in place over vendor disbursements, it appears that tbe employee who prepares the checks also is responsible for ruuning the checks through tbe check signing machine. Good internal controls would dictate that the same employee should not be able to perfonu both of these, functions Recommendation: The Director of Finance should review all employee job duties for incompatible functions. These, two i~c,ompalible functions should be reassigned to separate employees along with any other incompatible functions found in lhe review. Managemeut's response: Another person is on staff in the acc, ouuts payable department who is available and wi be assigned to check-signing duties. 99-M8 Student Aclivitv Funds 
Comment: The Legislative Auditor's Student Activity Funds Policy Handbook states that iuvoices should be marked "paid" to prevent duplicate payment, the principal or bookkeeper should issue a prenumbered receipt for all funds received by rite office, and all admission fees should be controlled by prenumbered tickets. Thrc,c, schools were randomly selected to test the accounting records. In the review of the records, the following were noted: 1. At all three of the schools, invoices were not marked "paid." Instead the check requests were attached to invoices. 2. At all three of the schools, receipts were not issued for all funds received by the principal's office. 3. At all three of the schools, teacher collection sheets were not dated the date that monies were actually received from students. 4. At one of the schools, an inventory was not taken for concessions nor were total sales reconciled to total rc,c,eipts, Admission tickets were not issued for admission fees, Five receipts were not deposited in a timely manner as follows: 
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Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Received August 23, 1998 September 15, 1998 October 2, 1998 February 24, 1999 March 5, 1999 

Deposited September 2, 1998 October 6, 1998 November 4, 1998 March 4, 1999 March 11, 1999 
Amount $ 480.00 240.00 ll0.00 540.00 1,240.00 Recommendafion: The School Board should consider changing their policies to comply with the Legislative Auditor's Policy Handbook for Student Activity Funds as needed. School personnel responsible for bookkeeping should be made aware of the changes and should follow tile new policies. 

ManapelnenlI$ resDonse 99-M9 Oar ]ntemal Auditor will address these matters with the school bookkeepers. Title 1 Comoarabili|v Reoor Cmnment: 34CFR part 200, the Improving America's School Act of 1994, and Louisiana Department of Education Guidance contain the regulations covering comparability. These regulations dictate that when computing base salaries for comparability reports, only the federally-paid personnel should be excluded. When testing the comparability report for fiscal year 1999, it was noted that personnel paid by state funding through tile 8(g) program were excluded fi'om the base salary computation. Recommendation: Personnel responsible for preparing the comparability report should ensure that they are familiar with the proper procedures for preparing the report. Only federally-funded employees should be excluded from the base salary column. Management's response: The person preparing the report was mistaken about the manner in whicb payments to one class of employees were to be treated. She is now aware of the proper treatment of those payments. 99-M10 Earlier Adontion of Budvet Amendments Recommended Comment: "/'he budget is a very important component of a government's communication with both the Board members and the citizens which the Board serves. In addition, the budgetary comparison statements arc required components of the general-purpose financial statements. The budget is most meaningful when the information contained in the budget is updated and presented in a timely l%shion. For the last two years, the final budget revision has occurred a significant amount of time after year-end, The final revision to the fiscal year 1998 budget was adopted by the Board on November 5, 1998, while, the final revision to the 1999 fiscal year budget was adopted on October 7, 1999. Recommendation: The School Board should adopt budgets and budget revisions in a timely manner Manaeement's resnonse In the future we will endeavor to have the final budget adopted by June 30 
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Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
99-M11 niform Unclaimed Pronertv Act of 1997 Comment: Tile Uniform Unclaimed Property Act of 1997 (LSA-R.S. 9:151 - 181) requires govermnents and governmental subdivisions or agencies, such as the School Board, to follow certain procedures regarding property that is presumed to be abandoned as defined in the Act. LSA-R.S. 9:154(A) states that "Property is presumed abandoned i fit is unclaimed by tile apparent owner during the time set forth below for tile particular property for the following:" LSA-R.S. 9:154(A)(10) states: "Property held by a court, state or other government, governmental subdivision or agency, public corporation or other public authority, one year after the property becomes distributable, except as provided in R.S 15:86.1..." LSA-R.S. 9:154(A)(11) states "Wages or other compensation for personal services, one year after the compensation becomes payable." Therefore, the Act appears to apply to both property and for wages or oilier compensation for personal services which is deemed abandoned one year after the property becomes distributable or tile compensatiou becomes payable. Assuming that tile Act applies to these items, the School Board is required to report file property and pay funds equal to the value of tile property to tile Secretary of file Louisiana Department of Revenue on an atmual basis. One situation which School Boards encounter fairly frequently and which may fall under tile provisions of the Act involves old outstanding checks. Both vendor and payroll checks which have been outstanding for more than one year from tile date of issuance appear to meet the definition of abandoned property under the Act. Annually, these checks would be reported and the funds remitted 1o lhe Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Revenue in accordance with tile Act. They could not be voided and the cash returned to the book balance. There may be situations other than old outstanding cheeks to which file School Board should consider whether or not the Act would apply. Recommendation: The School Board should consult with legal counsel to determine the applicability of the Act to tile Scbool Board's operations. Annually, the School Board should report any abandoned property and rem it funds to tile Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Revenue in accordance with the Act. Tile School Board will comply with tbe provisions of the above Act. 
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Board Members Bossier Parish School Board Benton. Louisiana 
Included immediately following this letter is a Status of Prior Management Letter Items. This information has not been audited by Allen, Green & Company, LLP, and no opinion is expressed. However, we did follow-up on prior management letter items and performed procedures to assess the reasonableness of/he Status of Prior Management Letter Items prepared by the School Board, and we would report, as a current-year management letter item when Allen, Green & Company, LLP, concludes that/he Status of Prior Management Letter Items materially mis- represents the status of any prior maoagement letter item. 

Monroe, Louisiana November 18, 1999 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP 
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98-M1 
Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Status of Prior Management Letter Items June 30, 1999 Fund Balances of the Oncrational Funds Condition: The Scllool Board has five funds which are available for general operations of the School Board. These funds include the general fund, the sales tax special revenue fund, the air conditioner repair and replacement special revenue fund, the one-half cent sales tax air conditioner capital project fund, and the capital project reserve capital project fund. Tile combined fund balance of all of those funds as of June 30, 1998, dropped to less fllan half of the fund balance as of June 30, 1997. A table is shown below which depicts the ending fund balance for fills year and the two prior years, and tile relationship to total governmental fund expendflures: 

June30~ 1996 1997 1998 
Fund Balance $ 8,176,494 11,420,430 5,442,310 

q~tal Goverumental Fund Expenditures $ 91,107,642 104,074,549 110,764,937 
Fund Balance as a % of the Total Govt. Fund Exnenditures 8.97% 10.97% 4.91% The maiu reason for the decline seems to be increased speuding as a result of pay raises and related benefits for a employees over the last few years. 

Management action taken: We realized that we were spending a great deal of moaey over tile past two years, however, these expenditures were for non-recurring items which needed to be addressed. We do uol anticipate these expenditures recurring over the next several years. This should give us adequate time to rebuild our fund balances 
98-M2 Accountin~ for Vacation Leave Condition: As discussed in last year's maoagement letter, accounting for vacation leave is very decentralized. Vacation leave is handled by approximately four different individuals. Accounting for vacation leave is not performed on the School Board's computer system and, as a result, tile computer system generates no printouts for accrual purposes. The only cmuputerized accounting is performed in the payroll departmeut. The payroll department does accouut for the uumber of days taken in the current year but does not account for the accrued balances ofvaoation days available to be taken or the dollar amounts of these liabilities. Last year we planned to centralize the accounting for vacation leave in the payroll department, ltowever, payroll persounel were not able to take time away from their ordinary duties to set up the vacation accounting system. We will again endeavor to move tile vacation leave accounting to the payroll department. 
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98-M3 
Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Status of Prior Management Letter Items June 30, 1999 School Usin~ Two Bank Accounts Condition: According to LSA-R.S. 17.414.3, each school shall maintain one bank account which is tile responsibility of the principal or an administrator acting in his/her capacity. One of the 32 schools in the parish uses two bank accounts; one bank account for the general fund and one bank account for a club or activity. The amount in the general fund account was $298.53 as of June 30, 1998, and the amount in the second account was $2,100.00 as of June 30, 1998. Manaeement action taken The school was required to close one of the acconnts. 

98-M4 Travel Expenditures Condition: Three travel expenditures tested ill a random sample of ten travel disbursements appeared to have incomplete documentation. Management action taken: Travel vouchers were reviewed to make sure that all required documentation was present. 
98-M5 Self-Insured Gronn Hosnitalization Plan Condition: The group health insurance internal service fund experienced a net income this year for tile first time since the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. Expectations are that the fund will improve and continue to perform well in the future. However, the fund continues to carry forward a large deficit balance in the retained earuings account of $2,343,830. Tile deficit is mainly due to large losses of $1,284,369, $944,183, $733,861, and $732,334 in file fiscal years ending June 30, 1992 through June 30, 1995. Management action taken: As long as the School Board has been self-insured for hospitalization it has followed the practice of funding the plan on a cash basis. Incurred But Not Reported Claims are recognized when the plan is put on the accrual basis. We recognize the desirability of funding the deficit and made a commitment last year to amortize it over three years. However, due to tile other expenditures we made, we were not able to begin the amortization. We therefore renew our commitment to amortize the deficit over the next five years. 
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98-M6 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Status of Prior Management Letter Items June 30, 1999 Advance Notice on Budget Adontion Less Than Ten Days Condition: LSA-R.S. 1306 requires political subdivisionstopublishanoticeintheofficialjournal statingthatthe proposed budget is available for public inspection at least ten days prior to the public hearing. The advertisement for file annual financial budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, was published on June 1 l, 1997, and the public hearing was held on June 19, 1997, eight days before the public hearing. Manaffement action taken: 
98-M7 

Notices of budget adoption have been made in a timely mamler 
Year 2000 Comnliance Disclosures Reauired Condition: 'File Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) recently issued Technical Bulletin No. 98-1 (TB No. 98-1 ). TB No. 98-1 will be effective for Bossier Parish School Board for next year, the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999. The School Board will be required to make disclosures about several aspects of the year 2000 compliance issue These disclosures will include: a. Any significant amount of resources committed (contracts outstanding) for purposes of making the Schoo Board's computer systems year 2000 compliant. A general description of the year 2000 issue as related to the School Board including a description of the stages of work in progress or completed in regards to making the School Board's computer systems year 2000 compliant aud any add itional stages of work that will be necessary to make the computer system year 2000 compliant. GASB has defiued several stages which will need to be examined including: 
awareness stage asscssmeut stage remediation stage validation/testing stage The School Board may need to dedicate a significant amount of resources to this issue in order to comply with the new disclosure requirements. Management action taken: We have made the required disclosure in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 



98-M8 D Deposit of Receipts 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 
Status of Prior Management Letter Items June 30, 1999 

Condition: LSA-R.S. 39:1212 and good internal control over receipts require deposits be made daily, if practical. We tested forty individual receipts (checks) received by the School Board on ten different days spread over eight months. Twenty-three were not deposited within three business days; however, twenty of the receipts were below $1,750. The three largest receipts were for $65,128, $61,383, and $51,805. Manaecment action taken 
98-M9 Fixed Asset Listing 

Receipts have been deposited on a more timely basis. 
Condition.: The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) which determines the standards of financial reporting for governm eutal entities, is planning to release a new reporting model shortly. This new reporting model, as currently proposed, will dramatically change several aspects of the financial reporting of the School Board. One of these aspects will be accounting for the capital assets owned by the School Board. The new reportiug model will require assets to be capitalized, shown on the balance sheet, and depreciated just as commercial entities currently do. The changes proposed by GASB will require a greater emphasis on fixed asset accounting. Currently the School Board accounts for each year's additions and deletions, but does not have a consolidated, centralized listing with information such as class of asset and life of asset. This information will be necessary to calculate depreciation and will be needed on all assets owned by the School Board, not just on the assets purchased after the reporting model is passed. Management action taken: We arc aware ofthe need to maintain a comprehensive listing of assets, The major reasou that we do not now have a comprehensive list involves problems witll the PC-based system that was in place until 1996. Since 1996, we have had to keep track of additions and deletions on a year-by-year basis using Lotus. We have a fixed asset application on our main-frame computer, however, some modifications to it will have to be made by our programmers. Once there modifications are made, the data from the two PC-based systems could be loaded onto it. 
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Bossier Parish School Board Benton, LouisiaJ~a Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 



 

"G~ CPA. 
ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS P. O. Box 6075 Monroe, LA 71211-6075 2414 Fertand Street Monroe, LA 71201 Telephone: (318) 388-4422 Facsimile: {318) 388-4664 Web site: www, allengreencpa corn 

Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana 

2285 Benton Road G.O.P. Building I11. Suite 400 Bossier City, LA 71111 TeJephone: (318)741-0205 Facsimile: (318)741-0207 

Independent Auditors' Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA A Professional Accoun in9 Corp ) Tim Green, CPA Margie Willialnson, CPA 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Bossier Parish School Board, solely to assist the users in evaluating management's assertion about the effectiveness of Bossier Parish School Board's compliance with Act 743 of 1995 concerning the Bossier Educational Excellence Fund (BEEF) (a special revenue fund of the Bossier Parish School Board) for the year ended June 30, 1999, included in management's letter dated November 18, 1999. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

Mef.ber: American Institute or'Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana CeaiFtcd Public Accountants anvl Americml InsTitute of Certified Public Accounlmlts Division for CPA Finlls Equal Opportunity Employer 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Page 2 
PROCEDURES FINDINGS Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 27:93 Randomly select three months collections and determine that the following two statements are true: 1. An admission fee was collected of up to $2.50($3 The governing bodies of each governmental entity in is permissible and the extra 50 cents is for parish Bossier Parish agreed to accept a fixed annual amount roads) for each passenger boarding or embarking in-lieu-of a passenger boarding fee. upon a river boat in the parish. 2. 15% of the applicable admission fee revenue None. collected within the parish of Bossier was allocated to the Bossier Educational Excellence Fund. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Page 3 
PROCEDURES FINDINGS Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 A 

Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following statement is true: I. The Bossier Educational Excellence Fund was None. established. Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 B (1) Test tile fund's records to ascertain that the followin statements are true: 1. Funds collected pursuant to LSA-R.S. 4:552 (A) None. and allocated pursuant to LSA-R.S. 27:93(A)(2)(f) were transferred to the depository of the BEEF. ' 2. Funds collected pursuant to LSA-R.S. 4:163.1 (D) None. and allocated pursuant to LSA-R.S. 4:163.1 (D)(2)(c) were transferred to the depository of the BEEF. 3. The bank account is in the official depository of None. the School Board. 4. The School Board invested the principal only in None. the following: Direct obligations of the U. S. Government. Time certificates of deposits of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 5. The amount of earnings shall be kept account of None. separately from fund principal. 6. The amount of earnings shall be available for the None. School Board to withdraw as provided in this section. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Page 4 
PROCEDURES FINDINGS Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 B (2) Test the fund's records to ascertain tllat the following statement is true: 1. All monies attributable to the BEEF as enacted by None. Act No. 370 of the 1985 Session and unexpended on August 15, 1995 was deposited in the fund created per LSA-R.S. 17:408.2. Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 C Test the fund's records to ascertain that the followin statements are true: 1. The principal of the BEEF was not appropriated. The interest earnings of the BEEF totaled $71,814 for the period January 1, 1997 to December 31, 1997. With- drawals of investment income during the next calendar year exceeded this amount. Expenditures from January 1, 1998 to December 31,1998, totaled $112,410. 2. The principal of the BEEF was used only for The interest earnings of the BEEF totaled $71,814 for income-producing investments. the period January 1, 1997 to December 31, 1997. With- drawals of investment income during the next calendar year exceeded this amount. Expenditures from January 1, 1998 to December 31, 1998, totaled $112,410. The investment income for a calendar year was not qone. withdrawn by the School Board before January 1 of the next calendar year. The investment income withdrawn did not exceed The interest earnings of the BEEF totaled $71,814 for the earnings which had accrued during the prior the period January 1, 1997 to December 31, 1997. With- calendar year. drawals of investment income during the next calendar year exceeded this amount. Expenditures from January 1, 1998 to December 31,1998, totaled $112,410. 



Bossier Parish School Board Benton, Louisiana Page 5 
PROCEDURES FINDINGS Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 D Randomly select and test twenty-five disbursements (assuming there is this number of disbursements during the period ended June 30, 1999) from the fund to determine that the expenditures complied with the following statute stipulation: 1. The earnings from the fund were expended only None. for instructional enhancement to the educational program in Bossier Parish. The earnings from the fund were not expended for None. the following: 
Administrative Custodial ~ Maintenance expenses ~ Capital expenses 3. Equipment and supplies purchased with such funds None. were for educational purposes only. Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.2 D (Continued) Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following statement is true: The audit of the Bossier Parish School Board None. specifically addresses compliance with the provi- sions of LSA-R.S. 17:408.2. 

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on management's assertion. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report is intended solely for the use of management and the School Board and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures fur their purposes. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Monroe, Louisiana November 18. 1999 ALLEN. GREEN & COMPANY. LLP 


